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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director
February 23, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a no-cost renewal option
for sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of .becoming homeless in Strafford County,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.
This is a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September 7, 2016 (Item #9), and September 21,
2016 (Item #11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor # Current
Budget
Greater Nashua Council on 615 Amherst St. 166574-B001 $500,000
Alcoholism Nashua, NH 03063

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd. 275119-B001 $482,119
Rochester, NH 03867

Families in Transition 122 Market St. 157730-B001 $499,207
Manchester, NH 03101

Total: | $1,481,326

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,481,326
Total: $1,481,326
EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost in
order to provide substance use disorder treatment services; residential and/or supportive housing; and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders; have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been
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identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services to pregnant
and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother’s care. These amendments
are no additional cost, because funding is being carried over from the previous year.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential and/or
supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance use disorders
and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with substance use
disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential treatment. However, these
women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be found
eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders. Additionally,
women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are less likely to seek help
due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could result in separation from their
children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing
the State. The services these vendors provide will allow mothers to remain with their children while
they seek treatment for substance use disorder. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to
provide a safety net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second
statutory purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through
work, and education. These vendors will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring
appropriate care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniguely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community.
The vendors are providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to provide
for their families, while addressing participants’ substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will be
based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic
biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and treatment
across all services and levels of care. All services are designed to allow children to remain in the
mother’'s care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

e Anger management classes

o Coping skills

o Childbirth education classes

o Nurturing parenting classes

¢ Lactation services

o Therapeutic play

¢ Mindfuiness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by the vendors and is requesting a
renewal for an additional year of service. The original agreements call for the provision of these
services for one (1) year, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, based upon
continued availability of funding, satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and
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Executive Council. This amendment shall renew the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1)
additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has
been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment services
they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

A

Diregor

/
!
"MW
Approved by:
rey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #71 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #17) dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 615 Ambherst Street, Nashua,
NH 03063.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on September 7, 2016 (#9), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

gthetl § zol7 %= v/
Date Terry Smith—
Director

Contractor Name: rader Neshaa Guncil ea Meehalisim

2/22/17 (%Z/ﬂ/}/)/

Date Name: fete Kellohe
Title: fresident & £o
Acknowledg nt: AL
State of eﬂﬂ , County of \ on L /0?01 // '\7

before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the gerson identified abdve, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is sighed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date | | Name: WMyas. [} N
Title: K um‘g
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and

Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
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State of Nefor Hampshire

Hepariment of State

CERTIFICATE.

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed December 16, 1983. I further certify that it is in good
standing as far as thig office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees

required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 14" day of April A.D. 2016

Zy Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
~ . “ . /
I, /1 < , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the electad Officer of the’Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Officer of 62 \Eﬁﬁf‘[ (2425[?[(4“ 747_[1[]( /_‘l on é?[gzgig\g/h .
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 0717707//7

(Date)

RESOLVED: That the /7)/’ €S ngL + CF (9

(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalif of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the éd"jday of - : ua ,20sz.

(Date Contract Signed

4. %ﬁ%ﬁ /VE//&AC’/" is the duly elected pfﬁé///f/’)?" 7 /‘/C((

(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency. (\ W

S|gnatur%f the E%d Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of ) 5.547

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this CQ@M day of i —éz 5 . ,20/ 2 ,

By 2 }g(g[d %ﬂﬂg]gg/’l .
(Name of Elécted Officer of the Agency) ﬂ }/}4{7

(Notar lic/Justice of the Peace)
\\\\\\\\HIHII/////

{NOTARY SEAL) \ ........ Z,
S 51ATE"'-._O(’//,
é ; § WS
o . L/ /q E 7 Commsson - =
Commission Expires: EXPRES i =
T B W S
> ) ¢ & £
Lo N
o, ”Ams‘.‘--‘\o N
Uy OB
’*’/mumm\«\\\‘
NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005

Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



. I
ACORD"  CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE e

3/8/2017

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

EPR?DUC;RB o A | Name T Kimberly Gutekunst
aton & Berube Insurance Agency, Inc. PHONE _  ~02 oan (AIC, No):
11 Concord Street E-MAIL 1.003-882-2/66 s
Nashua NH 03064 ApDREsskgutekunst@eatonberube.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURER A :Hanover Insurance
INSURED HARHO INSURER B :Philadelphia Insurance Companies
Harl_t:or Hsomes, Inc INSURER ¢ :Great Falls Insurance Co
45 High Street :
Nashua NH 03060 WSURERD:

INSURERE :

INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2030495871 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDLISUBR| POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR | WVD POLICY NUMBER {MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A GENERAL LIABILITY Y ZBV9707147 7/1/2016 7/1/2017 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
X DAMAGE TO RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | $1,000,000
‘ CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
X | Abuse GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
POLICY PRO= X | Loc . $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY AHVS706003 71172016 712017 | GQUEINED SINGLETIMIT T 900,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ALL OWNED SCHEDULED .
ALL O SCHED BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
< x| NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Per accident)
$
A X UMBRELLALIAB X | occur UHV970913303 7/1/2016 71172017 EACH OCCURRENCE $5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $5,000,000
DED }X ‘ RETENTION $0 s
C | WORKERS COMPENSATION WCD0936040016 11/26/2016 | 11/26/2017 S TS \ |0ET,;"
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000
OF FICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $1,000,000
'Ef)ég%rgnepsﬁgﬁ uonrgeorpEFzATloms below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $1,000,000
A | Professional Liability L1VA966006 7/1/2016 71112017 $1,000,000 $3,000,000
B | Management Liability PHSD1049831 7/1/2016 71112017 $1,000,000
A |Crime BMVA101342 71112016 71112017 $510,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

Additional Named Insureds:

Harbor Homes, Inc. - FID# 020351932

Harbor Homes |l, Inc.

Harbor Homes Ill, Inc.

Healthy at Homes, Inc. -FID# 043364080

Milford Regional Counseling Service, Inc. -FID# 222512360

See Attached...
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
. SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
State of New Hampshire THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Department of Health and Human Services ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Lot

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




AGENCY CUSTOMER ID: HARHO

LOC #:

P ®
ACORD ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE Page 1 of 1

AGENCY
Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency, inc.

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER

NAIC CODE

NAMED INSURED

Harbor Homes, Inc
45 High Street
Nashua NH 03060

EFFECTIVE DATE:

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,
FORM NUMBER: 25 FORM TITLE: CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

HH Ownership, Inc.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force -FID# 020447280
Welcoming Light, Inc. -FID# 020481648

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism dba Keystone Hall -FID# 222558859

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION. Alirights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Mission Statement

To empower the chemically dependent person to
Take responsibility toward recovery through
Professional counseling in a caring environment
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COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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MELANSONI|glNgs

ACCOUNTANTS « AUDITORS

102 Perimeter Road

Nashua, NH 03063
(603)882-11M
melansonheath.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Additional Offices:

Andover, MA

To the Board of Directors of Greenficld, MA
. . Manchester, NH
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Ellsworth, ME

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Nashua Council
on Alcoholism, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2015, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finan-
cial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and mainte-
nance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.



Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
~——— appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness-of significant -
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc. as of
June 30, 2015, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism, Inc.’s fiscal year
June 30, 2014 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion
on those audited financial statements in our report dated January 15, 2015. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2014 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary information is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 10, 2015 on our consideration of the Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compili-
ance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resulits of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Greater Nashua Council on.
Alcoholism’s internal control over financial reporting and.compliance.

MaLamson Hooth

December 10, 2015



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2015

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2014)

ASSETS
2015 014
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 231,875 $ 83,038
Accounts receivable, net 333,635 222,351
Prepaid expenses 24,996 6,612
Total Current Assets : 590,508 312,901
Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation 5,817,672 6,013,809
Reserve for replacements 14,461 13,067
Debt issuance costs, net 77,785 -
Total Assets $ 6,500,424 $ 6,339,777
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 29,921 $ 108,397
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 209,003 117,372
Due to related organizations 183,625 177,744
Line of credit 47,902 -
Current portion of bonds and mortgages payable 80,825 150,022
Total Current Liabilities 551,276 553,535
Long Term Liabilities:
Bonds payable, long term 3,824,539 -
Mortgages payable, long term - 3,721,966
Mortgages payable, deferred 1,885,000 1,885,000
Total Long Term Liabilities 5,709,539 5,606,966
Total Liabilities 6,260,815 6,160,501
Unrestricted Net Assets 238,609 179,276
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 6,500,424 $ 6,339,777

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2014)

Support and Revenue:
Support:
State of New Hampshire
Federal grants
Contributions
Revenue:
Client services:
Medicaid
Medicare
Third party insurance
Client billings, net
Contracted services
Other income
Interest income

Total Support and Revenue
Expenses:
Program services

General and administrative
Fundraising

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2015

106,591
1,391,460
145,610

B41,728
3,206
21,085
38,634
7,367
20,048
20

2,575,729

+

2,079,135
406,278

__ 20983

2,515,396

60,333

179,276

239,609
=

$

$

2014

78,733
1,467,968
19,176

530,150
3,252
42,767
29,538
21,110
28,026
41

2,220,761

2,152,850
225,721

32,479

2,411,050

(190,289)

369,565

179,276



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statsment of Functlonal Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2014)

Program General and 2015 2014
Advertising $ 1,722 $ 48 $ - $ 1,770 $ 2,757
Accounting fess - 14,025 . 14,025 7,075
Client services 34,671 115 - 34,786 63,807
Client transportation 4,528 1 - 4,530 13,628
Conferences and conventions 148 116 - 264 1,244
Contract services 43,815 4,702 - 48,617 25,405
Depreciation 189,496 6,641 - 196,137 196,091
Employes benefits 157,532 53,994 2,200 213,728 225,158
Food 102,024 24 - 102,048 92,960
Fundraising expense - - 119 119 -
Garbage and trash removal 2,482 60 - 2,542 2,626
Grant expenses 73,980 ~ - 73,980 -
Infarmation technology 1,023 5,191 - 6,214 1,030
Insurance 14,764 5,459 - 20,223 13,377
Interast . 1,676 - 1,676 -
Joumals and publications 177 4 - 181 539
Legal fees 1,447 8489 - 2,296 .
Membership dues 1,526 641 “ 2,167 3,105
Miscellaneous 8,330 8,635 - 16,965 7321
Mortgage interast 76,963 99,581 - 176,544 254,676
Office supplies 10,388 147 88 10,623 5,758
Opsrating and maintenance 55,021 1,831 - 56,852 55,055
Operational supplies 29,118 154 - 28,273 24,860
Payrol! taxes 91,112 4,703 2,254 98,069 113,419
Postage 489 40 - 529 2,002
Professional faes 8,709 211 - 8,920 14,183
Rent 17,673 - - 17,673 B
Saleries and wages 1,055,666 194,524 25,322 1,275,512 1,168,445
Snow removal - - - - 8,887
Staff development 4,412 145 - 4,557 3,757
Staff expenses N 515 . 515 1,180
Staff travel 1,999 122 - 2,121 6,191
Telephone 3,468 306 - 3,774 3,179
Utilities 66,149 1,601 - 67,750 74,913
Vehicle expenses 20,201 217 - 20418 18,422
Total functional expensas $§ 2,079,135 $ 406,278 $ 290983 $ 2,515,386 $ 2,411,050
] e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Endad June 30, 2015

{With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2014),

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
(Increase) Decrease In;
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Cash Flow From Investing Acfivities:
Purchase of fixed assets
Change in reserve for replacements
Net Cash Used By Investing Activities
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Change in due to related organizations
Proceeds from fine of credit
Payments to line of credit
Principal payments on long term debt
Debt issuance costs, net
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid

Non-cash debt refinancing

2015 2014
$ 60,333 $ (190,289)
198,278 196,001
(111,284) (14,898)
(18,384) (250)
(78,476) 86,639
91,631 11,780
142,008 89,073
. (3,750)
{1,395) (8)
(1,395) (3.758)
5,880 45,035
51,403 .
(3,500) -
- (147,183)
(46,549) -
7,234 ~ {102,148)
147,937 (16,833)
83,938 100,771
$ 231,875 $ 83938
E — ———— E——
$ 171,573 $ 255421
= — | —
$ 3,930,523 $ -
— |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Notes to the Financial Statements

Organization:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (the Organization) is a nonprofit
organization providing recovery support services which are evidence-based,
gender-specific, and culturally competent. The programs include residential,
transitional housing, outpatient, intensive outpatient, family-based substance
abuse services, pregnant and parenting women and children, and offender
re-entry services initiative.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The folloWing is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Organiza-
tion used in preparing and presenting the accompanying financial statements.

Accounting for Contributions and Financial Statement Presentation.

The Organization follows Accounting for Contributions Received and Con-
tributions Made and Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations as
required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards
Cadification (FASB ASC). Under these guidelines, the Organization is required
to distinguish between contributions that increase permanently restricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and unrestricted net assets. It also
requires recognition of contributions, including contributed services, meeting
certain criteria at fair values. These reporting standards establish standards for
financial statements of not-for-profit organizations and require a Statement of
Financial Position, a Statement of Activities, a Statement of Functional
Expenses, and a Statement of Cash Flows.

Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this basis, revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are
reported when incurred, without regard to the date of receipt or payment of
cash. Contributions are reported in accordance with FASB ASC Accounting
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.



Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in
unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period
in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions
are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, tem-
porarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Organization considers all
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts for receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Organization’s management and
adjusted as required through the provision for doubtful accounts (bad debt
expense). In determining the amount required in the allowance account for
the year ended June 30, 2015, management has taken into account a variety
of factors.

Property, Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair
market value at the date of donation. Major additions and improvements are
capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to expense.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summa-
rized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the Statement
of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.



Donated Services

The Organization receives donated services from a variety of unpaid volun-
teers assisting the Organization in its programs. No amounts have been
recognized in the accompanying Statement of Activities because the criteria
for recognition of such volunteer effort under generally accepted accounting
principles have not been satisfied.

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and would typically need to be purchased:if not provided by donation,
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assump-
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Tax Status

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism is exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization
described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been classified as
an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section 509(a)
and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for unicertainty in income
taxes and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute
for financial statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken
or expected to be taken in a tax retum. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a
material impact on the Organization’s financial statements.

The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Retum of Organization Exempt From
Income Tax) is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years
after they were filed. ’

The Organization recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties that are included within reported expenses.
During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Organization had no interest or
penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits.
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Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified
for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current-year
financial statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The carrying amount of the Organization's deposits with financial institu-

tions was $246,336 and $97,004 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The difference between the carrying amount and the bank balance represents
reconciling items such as deposits in transit and outstanding checks, which
have not been processed by the bank. The bank balance is categorized as
follows: ‘ '

2015 2014
Insured by FDIG $ 265,213 $ 115,750
Total Bank Balance $ 265,213 $ 115,750

Accounts Receivable, Net:

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2015 consists of the following:

Receivable Allowance Net
Grants $ 144,469 § - $ 144,469
Medicaid 89,746 (22,437) 67,309
State 73,960 : 73,960
Other 47,897 - 47 897
Total $ 356072 $ (22437) $ 333,635

11
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Proggr_ty, Eguigment and Depreciation:

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented

below:
2015

Land $ 742,500
Land improvements 1,743
Building 5,646,560
Building improvements 22,637
Fumiture and fixtures 34,511
Equipment 11,276
Vehicles 22,297

Subtotal 6,481,524

Less: accumulated depreciation (663,852)

Total $ 5,817,672

2014

$ 742,500
1,743
5,646,560
22,637

34,511
11,276
22,297

6,481,524

(467,715)
$ 6,013,809

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 totaled

$196,137 and $196,091, respectively.

The estimated usefut lives of the depreciable assets are as follows:

Assets Years
Land improvements 15
Building and improvements 30
Furniture and fixtures 5-7
Equipment 5
Vehicles 5

Reserve for Replacements:

Reserve for replacements consist of funds required to be used for the replace-
ment of property, with prior approval by the New Hampshire Housing Finance

Authority.

12



Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities:

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following:

2015 2014
Accrued payroll and related liabilities $ 203,828 $ 105,878
Accrued interest 5,175 11,346
HSA liability - 148
Total $ 209,003 $ 117,372

Due to Related Organizations:

Due to related organizations represents short-term liabilities due to related
entities whereby common control is shared with the same Board of Directors.
The related organizations and their balances at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

201 014
Current:
Harbor Homes, Inc. $ 56975 §$§ 55249
Healthy at Home, Inc. 96,280 95,440
Milford Regional Counseling Services 3,862 -
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force 26,507 27,055
Total $ 183,624 $ 177,744

Bonds Payable:

Bonds payable as of June 30, 2015 were as follows:

$3,963,900 in New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority bonds, dated September 15, 2014, due in
monthly installments of $19,635, including principal and
interest at 4.00%, maturing in 2042, secured by real

property, guaranteed by Harbor Homes, Inc. $ 3,905,364
Total 3,905,364

Less amount due within one year (80,825)

Long term debt, net of current portion _ $_ 3,824,539

13
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11.

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned

"~ “long-term debt. — -
Year Amount
2016 $ 80,825
2017 84,165
2018 87,594
2019 91,163
2020 94,490
Thereafter 3,467,127
Total $ 3'9055364

Mortgages Payable, Deferred:

The Organization received special financing as partial funding for a new
building. These notes are interest free for thirty years with principal payments
calculated annually at the discretion of the lender. Certain covenants apply
related to eligibility and use of the mortgaged property. The balance of these
notes at June 30, 2015 is as follows:

» Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston — $385,000
Affordable Housing Program
» New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority $1,500,000

Transactions with Related Parties:

The Organization offers counseling services to the clients of related organiza-
tions. These services are provided whenever requested.

The Organization receives janitorial and maintenance services performed by
clients of Harbor Homes, Inc., a related organization. The Organization also
receives payroll services from the related organization.

The Organization rents space from Harbor Homes, Inc., a related organiza-
tion. Rent expense for the year under this agreement was approximately
$17,000.

The Organization is considered a commonly controlled organization with
several related entities by way of its common board of directors. However,
management feels that the principal prerequisites for preparing combined
financial statements are not met, and therefore more meaningful separate
statements have been prepared.

14
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13.

14.

15.

Net Assets Released from Restriction:

There were no restricted net assets during the year ended June 30, 2015
and, as a result, no net assets were released from restrictions.

Retirement Plan:

After one year of continuous service with the Organization, employees may
contribute a portion of their wages to a Section 403(b) retirement plan. The
Organization matches a percentage of the employee contribution based on
years of service. Total matching contributions paid by the Organization for the
years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were $39,674 and $26,267, respec-
tively.

Concentration of Risk:

A material part of the Organization’s revenue is dependent upon support from
the State of New Hampshire and Medicaid, the loss of which would have a
materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the year ended June 30,
2015, the State of New Hampshire accounted for 50% and Medicaid account-
ed for 35% of total revenues.

Fair Value Measurements:

FASB ASC, Fair Value Measurements, provides guidance for using fair value
to measure assets and liabilities. Fair Value Measurements applies whenever
other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at their
fair market value. The standard does not expand the use of fair value in any
new circumstances. Under Fair Value Measurements, fair value refers to the
price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the meas-
urement date. Fair Value Measurements clarifies the principle that fair value
should be based on the assumptions market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that priori-
tizes the information used to develop those assumptions.

Under Fair Value Measurements, the Organization categorizes its fair value
estimates based on a hierarchical framework associated with three levels of
price transparency utilized in measuring financial instruments at fair value.
Classification is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

¢ Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at

15



the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in

e Level 2 - Inputs from active markets, other than quoted prices for
identical instruments, are used to model fair value. Significant inputs
are directly observable from active markets for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability being valued; and

s Level 3 - Pricing inputs significant to the valuation are unobservable.
Inputs are developed based on the best information available; how-
ever, significant judgment is required by management in developing
the inputs.

The estimated fair value of the Organization’s financial instruments is pre-
sented in the following table:

Carrying

Value Eair Value Level One Level Two Level Three
Bonds payable $ 3905364 § 3905364 3 - $ 3905364 § -
Mortgages
payable, deferred 1,885,000 1,885,000 - 1,885,000 -
Due to related
organizations 183,625 183,625 - - 183,625
Total liabilities $ 5973989 § 5973989 $_ - $_ 5,790,364 $ 183625

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of those financial instruments.

Fair Value Measurements
Using Significant Unobservable Inputs
Level Three
Due to related

Beginning balance June 30, 2014 $ 177,744
Advances 163,654
Reductions (157,773)
Ending balance June 30, 2015 $__183,625

16
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Subsequent Events:

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent
Events, events and transactions from July 1, 2015 through December 10,
2015, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, have
been evaluated by management for disclosure. Management has determined
that there were no material events that would require disclosure in the
Organization’s financial statements through this date.

17
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PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Present
2002-Present
1997-Present
1995-Preseat
1995-Present
1982-Present

2003-200¢6

1980 - 1982

1979 - 1980

1978 - 197

1977-1979

1976

19711976

Mmt:mo,g:m s Cones

Nashus Counell on Aleshaliam, Ine/ Keystone Nashos, N
Presldent & CRO, Healthy At Home, Inc,, Nashus, NH Bl

Fresident & CEO, Milford Reglonal Coumseling Sexvices, Inc., Milford, N

Prestdent & CEQ, Weleoming Light, Ine., Nashua, NH

Presldent & CEO, Harhor Homes, In¢., Nashun, NH
MWHMWM&&MW@M&:M
Living) creating and providing residential snd suppaortive sarvices, mental health care,

health cars, subatances use disorder treatment and prevention services, supported employment and
workforce development, prafessional training, and in-home health care to individuals and families who are
homelegs, living with dissbilities, and/or are underserved/metnbers of vulnerable populations, Responsibla
for initiztion, development, and oversight of more than 80 programs comprising & $22,000,000 operating
budget; proposal development regulting in more than $15,000,000 in grauts annually; oversight of 350+
management and direct care professionals.

Consultant

Providing consultstion and technical assistance thtoughout the State to aid service and mental health
organizations,

Rexl Estate Broker, LeVanx Realty, Cambridge, MA
Suocessful sales and property management specialist.

Clinicsl Coerdinator, Task Oriented Communities, Waltham, MA
Rstahlighed and provided comprebensive rebabilitation services to spproximately 70 individuals with

mentsl and/or developmental disabilities Hired, directfy supervised, snd trained & full-time staff of 20
residential coordinators. Developed commmmity residences for the above cliends in three Boston suburbs.

Provided emergenoy consultation on & 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six gronp
homes and one sheltered workshop. Adnﬂnimuﬁvere:ponn‘hiliﬂumhﬁedmﬁmmdmagmm,
quality assurance, and other aocountability to state anthozities.

Facalty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
WMmmmmﬁmmmwunmwmw

Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massschuseits Tuberculosts Treatment Center I, 2 uni¢ of

Middlesex County Hospital, Waltham, MA
Functioned ss socond in coomand and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdiscipinary team mambers,
mwammmmkmmmmmmm

slcoholism. Provided group and individual therspy, relaxation training.

Socis! Worker, Massachusetts Instituto of Tecknology, Out-Patimt Prychistry, Cambridgs, MA
Enployed in full-time summer position providing out patient counseling o fndividuals and groups of the

MIT comxmmtity.

Program Counsclor/Supervisor, WW«TM,MH‘MMW

Upward Bound Program, Cambridge snd Wellesley, MA
Major responsibilities consisted of peycho educational counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision

of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evalnstive research for program polioy development.
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EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE 5

1975-1977  Simmons College Schoot of Social Work, Boston, MA 3
Cambridge-Somerville Commmmity Mental Health Progtam, MSW

1971-1975  Clark University, Worcester, MA. Received Bachelor of Arta Dogroe in Peychology
LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Fatate Broker — Massachusetts
1589 Academy of Certificd Social Warkers - NASW

1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Soois! Worker - Massachnsetta

1994 State of New Hampahire Certificd Clinioal Social Worker, MA LICSW
PLACEMENTS

1976-1977  Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychistry, Cambeidge, MA
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalizsd patients.,

1975-1976  Massachusetts Fnstitute of Technology, Social Service Department, Cambridge, MA
Simdlar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983 -1984  Antioch/New Bngland Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Keene, NH
1983 - 1984  Rivier Collegs, Department of Psychology, Nashoa, NH -

19901991 Rivier College, Department of Peychology, Nastma, NH

1978-1979 Middlesex Community College, Social Wark Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

High School Valedictorian Awerd

National Institute of Menial Health Trainceship in Social Work

University of New Hampehire Commmnity Developrent 2003 Cotmunity Leader of the Year
NAMINH 2007 Anmual Award for Systems Change

Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007

The Walter J. Dunfoy Corporats Fund Award for Bxcellence in Non Profit Management 2009
NH Magazine Buginess Excellence Award 2010

Nashna Telegraph Humanttarisn of the Year Award 2015

Lione! W. Jobnson Housing Award, Champion of Human Rights 2015

MEMBERSHIPS

Maember of the Department of Veterans Affairs Advisory Committec on Homeless Veterans

Board Member, Commmunity Health Access Network (CHAN)

National Association of Social Workers

Former member of the Nationsl Hexlthcare for the Homeless Board of Directars

Former Chair, Govamor’s State Interagency Council on Homelessness/New Hampshire Polioy Acadenry
Former Chair, Greater Nashtia Contintum of Care

Former Board Member, New Futures, Concord, NH
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Annetie Escalante, MSW, LADC

29 Haig Stre et

Evening Phone 603-669-3495
Day phone: 603-867-2224

Manchester, NH 03102 E-mall preferida@comcast.not

To locate a position whera | can ulilize my skills and experience o develop programs
and services for the economically disadvantaged.

Undergraduate Degree: Springfield College, BA Major: Human Services
Graduate Degres: Univerity of New Hampshire, MSW Major: Social Work
Currenlly working towards LICSW

Ucensed Alcohol Drug Counselor (LADC) State of New Hampshire
* Substance Abuse « Budget Development
e HIV/AIDS + Grant Wilting/Report Management
« Domeslic Violence/ Rape Crisls e Program Planning and Evaluation
s  Quireach tc Sex Workers ¢ Regulatery Compliance
» Deotoxification Programs » Policy and Procedure Development
s Correctional instifutions s Supervisory Experlence
s Culturally Diverse Populctions s Program Development
¢ Federally Funded Programs e Group, Family and Individugl Counseling
« Gender Specific Programming for o Community Networking
Women * Volunteer Coordination
7/09-Present: Vice President

I Keystone Hall, Noshua, NH

In this poslition, my responsibliiles include:

Oversight of all clinfcal and administration programs and personnel.

Develop and supervise provisions of all clinical records and programs offered by the
Agency.

Works In conjunction with CEQ to establish goals and plans for long-term financial and
clinlcal success of the Agency.

Manage overail budgets, funding sources and accounting te ensure Integrity and
compliance with regulations.

Maintain personne) records.

Grant and proposal wiiting.

Malntaln compliance with federal, state, and local regulaﬂons

Screen, traln, and supervise existing and new staff to develop and build an effeclive
orggnization.

Perform staif Job performance evaluations.

sulld ond maintaln effective relafionships with govemment agencies, service providers,
community partners, volunteers, and philanthroplc organizations.

Maintain a high level of professional and ethical standards.

Any and all other dutles as assigned by the CEO.,




~ 1172007-7/0%:  Adminisiralor of Women Offenders and Family Services -

New Hampshire Department of Comectfions-Commissioner's Office, Concord, NH.
In this position, my responsibilitles inciuded:

Responsible for programming and services for women offenders in the stafe aduli
correctional system including prokation, parole, and state correctional facilifies.
Established and Implemented a Co-Occuring program {PTSD and Substance Abuse)
for temale offenders at the New Hampshire State Prison for Women,

Establishing goals and objeciives for siate corectional systems within the framework
of the departiment's philasophy, Including planning. orgahldng, implementing,
drecling anc monltoring state gender+esponsive programs and services, as well as
developing policies, procedures, and standards for the provision of such programs
and services.

Write standards for, execuie, and monitor all non-clinical contracts with service
providers who work exclusively with women offendets.

Review and provide feedback on an ongeing basis on all clinical contfrocts and
services for women offenders regarding consistency with confract language and
genderresponsive prnciples.

Establish and coordinate partnerships. and maintain working relationships within the
department of health and human services, with other govemment agencies, with
communities, and with community-based organizations, volunteers, advocacy
groups, the academic communily, and other extemal stakeholders.

Developed and implemented a Trouma Tralning for the New Hompshire Department
of Corrections Academy. Currently working on Trauma Training for the New
Hampshire Police Academy.

Provide technlcal assistance 1o the women's faclity warden and fleld monagers
regarding issues related to women offenders and gender-responsive prograrms,
services, and praclices.

Provide Input regarding necessary data collection and evalvation to measure
effective programming and supervisicn of women offenders.

Consult with and provide input with other directors regarding appropriate levels of
staffing in both the field and institutions responsible for the management of women
offenders.

Confer with and make recommendations to the commissioner regarding women
offender supervision and services, oversee the planning. development, and
implementation of training guldelines for stalf working with women offenders, and
recommend changes in duties assighed to casework and security staff who work with
waomen offenders.

Act as ¢ resource In cases of staff sexual misconduct invoiving women offenders and
provide input Into personne! actions for addressing misconduct involving staff who
work with women offenders ond misconduct involving women offenders.

Prepare budget recommendations regarding women offenders’ program services
conslstent with the departmental budgel cycle. Engage In budget formation, grant
applications, and resource allocation aclivites related 1o women offenders as
assigned.

Act as lialson to the interagency coordinating council for women offenders and the
department of corections.

2007 Springfield College AdJunct Professor
In this per diem position, my responsibilities Include:

Teaching graduate and undergraduate course.

Courses Include Family Therapy and Cullural Diversity, Addiction Studies and Mental
Health Practicum.

Serving as a field advisor for students,



1/2008-current. Therapilst
RIT Associates-Manchester, NH
In this per diem position, my responsibilities Include:

+ Provide Indlvidual counseling for men and women to deal with substance abuse and
mental health issues weekly using Motivational interviewing, Behavioral Therapy and
Cognitive Behaviora! Therapy.

Provide LADC evdgluations.

Provide assassments,

Provide recommendations 10 courts and other referrals sources and coordinate care
with mental health providers,

5/1999-present: impaired Driver infervention Program Insiructor
Serenity Place, Manchester, NH -
In this per diem position, my responsitilities Include:
» __Provide 20 hours of alcohol and other drug education classes to mandated clients for
first offense Driving While intoxicated {DWI},
*__Provide Spanilsh speaking classes.
s Provide exit Intervlews to determine license eligibliity.

9/2005-11/2007: Cormrecllonal Counselor/Case Manager-Changed to Program Coordinator

New Hampshire Deportment of Comrections, Gofistown, NH.

In collaboration with other management siaff, my Job responsibiiities include creation

and implementation of a gender specific frauma Informed programs for female

oftenders. My other job responsibilities include:

« Evaluate substance abuse program for successiul outcomes and to ensure best
practice criterla are met.

» Supervise substance abuse programs for female offenders at NH State Prison for

Women and Shea Fam Transitional Housing Unit,

Supervision of Counselor/Case Managers af the Women's Prison and Shea Fam

Responsibliity for Program Development and Assessment.

Supervision of MSW Intems and voluntaers.

Responsible for assuring substance abuse programs for femcle offenders are in

compliance with ACA guidelines.

« Provide intake, assessments, LADC evaluations, reatment recommendations,
consuliation and coordinate care with mental health, ¢lassificotion, Parole and
Probation, and community based organzations,

. Coordinate eniry into treaiment programs for temale offenders In the community.

s Counsel Inmates on various personal Issues in regard to thelr transition and continued
adjustment into the communily, as well as adjustment within the comectional system,

s Provide clinlcal services to inmates with substance abuse and mental health
disorders,

Provide crisis counseling and contlict resolution.
Provide groups such as Anger Management and Victim Impact for female offenders.

*___Provide transiation for Spanish speaking clients.

5/2004-9/2005:  Soclal Worker/Youth Counselor- City of Manchester Youth Services,
Manchester, NH
+ Provided crlsis counseling to juvenile offenders and thelr famllies in the Manchester
dreaq.
o Directed youth téward productive behavior away from delinquency.
¢ Provided Group, individual counsefing and family therapy. {Motlvational Interviewing
ond Cognitive Behavioral Therapy).
+« Substance Abuse individual counssling.
« Perform CHINS pefitions.
+ Admisston/discharge planning and community networking working with diverse



services within the community.

Provide a four-sesslon self-assessment of the use and misuse of alcohol/drug [cowt
mandated for those clients under 21 yrs of age).
Provide transtation for Spanish speaking clients.

6/2000-5/2004 Program Monltor- New Hampshire Housing Fnance Authority, Bedford, NH.

PR

Monltored low- Income residents in the State of New Hampshire for the Section 8
Program.

Assessed and performed Income changes for participants in the Section8 Program,
home ownership and Family Self Sufficiency pregrams.

Performed home Inspections for program participants yearly to make sure their rental
properties were up to HUD and city codes.

Admission/discharge planning and community networking.

Provided conflict resolution with program participants and landlords,

Made referrals to suppartive services.

Provided assistance in locating affordable housing.

Provide transiation services for Spanish speaking tenants, landlords and staff
members.

9/1999-6/2000: Corectional Counselor/Case Manager-, New Hampshire Deparment of
Corrections, Laconla, NH,

[ ]
L

Provided clinical services to Inmates with substance abuse disorders.

Group and individual counseling pertaining to substance abuse and mental health
disorders.

Provided case management services.

Counseled Inmates on various personal Issues In regard 1o thelr fransitfion and
continued adjusiment into the community and within the comrections system.
Provide crisis counseling and contlict resolufion.

Oftered educotional lectures on a serles of different topics for inmates.
Coordinated Individual service plans, prerelease plans and assessments for
freatment to be utilized by the Probation/Parole Olficers

Provided translation services for Spanish speaking inmates and staff members.

11/1997-9/1999: Ovuireach Program Coordinator-New Hampshire AIDS Foundation,
Manchester, NH.

.

Program planning, devslopment and implementation of a new drop-in center for
intravenous substance abusers/sex workers geored towards accessing appropriate
substonce abuse freatment and prevention of HIV In Manchester, New Hampshire.
Budget planning and grant writing,

Responsible for svaluation of the program's effecliveness through management of o
‘data base of statistics and monitoring of program outcornes.

Policy and procedure development,

Responsible for assuring regulatory compliance with State of NH guidelines for the
funding received.

Provided supervision of all staif and volunteers at the Pine Street Prevention Center,
Coordinated services with community providers in the substance abuse field to
ensure appropriate treatment services for clients.

Provided short term clinlcal services to clients with substance abuse dtsorders
Provide cilsis counsaling and conflict resolution,

Provided street outreach to substance abusers ond sex workers.

Provided outreach with the Manchester Heclth Department’s Moblle Van twice a
week.

Provided transiaﬂon services tor Spanish speaking clients.



7/1996-11/1997:  Youth Oulreach Counselor- Clly of Manchester Office of Youth Services,

Manch

. & &5 & & 0

ester, NH.
Provided streat outreach to youth atrisk.
Provided referrals and mentoring.
Provided short term clinlcal services to cilents with substance abuse disorders.
Coordinated crisls Intervention for at risk clients,
Provide erisls counseling ond conflict resolution.
Provided translation services for Sponish speaking clients.

611994-7/1996:  Substunce Abuse Counselor- Providence Hospital, Holyoke, MA.
[

Coordinated services with communily providers in the substance abuse field 1o
ensure appropriate treatment services for clients,

Provided clinical services, group ond individual counseling to clients with substance
abuse disorders.

Responsible for coordination of case management services.

Completed intake and referrals for eligible cllents.

facliitated Twelve-Step Groups.

Faclitated Spanish Speaking Support Groups.

Coordinated Methadone Intakes and Insurance blling.

Provided translation services for Spanlsh speaking clients

11/1993-4/1995.  Bildge Team Leader- AIDS Allies, Springfield, MA.,
in this part ime paosition, | was responsible for ;

L 4

2/1990-

Program development and planning of a drop in center for intravenous subsiance
abusers/sex workers geared fowards accessing appropriate substance abuse
treatment and prevention of HiV in Springfleld Massachusetts,

Responsible for policy and procedure development.

Responsible for assuring regulatory compliance with the Springfield Health
Department funding guidelines.

Evaluated and supervised all staff and volunteers at the Drop in Center,
Coardinated services with community providers In the substance abuse field fo
ensure appropriate freatment servicas for clients.

Provided clinical services to clients with substance abuse disorders including
counsealing and case management/advocacy.

Provided clothing and created a sale ploce for sex workers and Intravenous drug
abusers.

Provided translafion services for Spanish speaking clients.

6/1994: Counselor Advocate-YWCA, Springfleld, MA.

Provided clinical services to clients affected by domestic violence.

Provided twenty-four hour hotline coverage for abuse and sexual assauit victims.
Provided Legal advogacy.

Cooardinated services with community providers to ensure appropriate servicas for
clients.

Facilitated support groups for Spanish speaking clients.

Provided HIV/AIDS education to residents of the shelter.

Responsible for assisting with the collection of billing data and demographic ond
service statistics.

Provided substance abuse counsefing, rape crisis counseling and support groups to
the Lating community,

Provided franslation services for Spanish speaking chents.



& Manchester Cultural Diversity Task Force 2004-2008
& {atinos Unidos of NH Advisory Board 2005-curent

1. tortSeog Bureau of Programs/NH DOC
2. Lily Ramos-Spooner Director of Operations/GMAP
3. Edda Cantor Execullve Director/Leadership NH



. Patricia A, Robitaille, CPA

PROFILE

¢ 18 years expeticnce in saccounting/finandal @  Treining experience

e Management experience ¢ Knowledge of multiple computer programs
s Diversificd industry exposure e  Excellent client rapport

e Counselor asnd mentor s Tax preparation experience
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

June 2009 — Present Vice President of Finance Hasbor Homes, Inc.,

-l'.‘gﬁ * o @ m ® 0@ @

Responsible for the finances of 9 related non-profit eatitics with revenues in excess §22M

Directly responsible for budgeting, planning, cash management, grants and contracts falling
under the buriness/2ccounting office

Reviews and enalyzes the monthly, quartetly and annual financial reports

Analyzes results of cash flows, budget expenditurcs and graat restrictions

Assists the President/CEO with finencial planning and capital projects

Respoasible for the anrmal financial and retirement audits of all related entities

Reviews Federal 990 tax returns and state retuns

Sct up web based electronic timesheets

Implemented the conversion and installation of accouating snd HR software

Prepares and reviews 941 quartedy returns, statc unemployment retutns

Oversces worket’s compensation renewals, sudit preparations, safety controls

Responsible for coordinating, financing of two $6M capital construction

Jan. 2007 = Oct. 2008  .Audlit Manager Ernst Young LLP, Manchester, NH

Managed sudits of private corporations with revermes up to $200 million
Agsisted g8 manager of audits for public cotporations with reveaves up to $400 million
Reviewed and assisted preparation of financial stateraents, 10Q quartedy filings and 10K annual
flings

Analyzed and reviewed internal contral under Section 404 of the Satbanes Oxley Act

Prepared management comments in conjunction with materisl weakness or sigoificant
teficiend

jun.l997—]m.2007 Audis Supervisar Melanson Heath & Compaay, P.C., Nashua, NH

Supervise/train various tcams for commercial, not-for-profit, and municipal audits and agreed
upon procedurcs
Andit services incude balance sheet reconeilistion inchuding inventory contral

Preparation aad presentation of financial statements
Preparstion of management comment letters for internal quality improvement
Assist clieats with all aspects of accounting



‘e Consulting services to dlients mdudmgmm& profits
*  Extensive corporate tax preparation experience |

#.  Prcparation of budgets and cash forecasting &—/g S -

1993 - 1997 Accounting/Office Mansger
s Management of a five-persons staff
n  Oversaw accounts receivable, accounts payable and general ledger reconciliation
» Responsible for inventory management, preparation for year-end audit and collaboration with
external suditors
» Prepared monthly jnternal financial statements

a Responsible for payroll including quartedies and year-end feporting

Company, Nashua, NH

EDUCATION

1988-1991  Rivier College, Nashua, NH — Bachelor of Science, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Licensed Certified Public Accountant in the State of New
Member of the New Hampshire Society of Cettified Public Accountants
Member of the American Institate of Certified Public Accountants

SOFTWARE EXPERIENCE
Exccl, Word, PowetPoint, Pro-Px ‘Tax software, Pro-Fx T'rial balance software, QuickBooks,

Peachtree, T-Value, various auditing softwate programs, Sage Non-profit Accounting software, Sage
MAS 90 accounting softwure,




CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract

Peter Kelleher President & CEO $177,943 2% $3,559

Patricia Robitaille VP of Finance $130,000 2% $2,600

Anette Escalante Director $88,000 6% $5,280




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov )
Director
1 ,:‘{;" i{“‘g £ Y S N PN d
August 5, é&@*‘v F‘ixrguf;uu oveg
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan 2 / /
and the Honorable Executive Council Date // 2
State House i Sl
J..,._\ :é,’:
Concord, NH 03301 L
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Vendor #166574-B001), 615 Amherst
Street, Nashua, NH 03063 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services,
residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in Strafford County
in an amount not to exceed $500,000, effective upon Governor and Executive Council through
June 30, 2017. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 | Payments to Providers 45057500 $500,000
Total: $500,000
EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one (1) of three (3) vendors,
statewide, that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use
treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in
the mother's care. The Department will request Governor and Executive Council approval of
the other agreement once received from the vendor.

The purpose for this request is to provide substance use disorder treatment services;
residential and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 2 of 3

‘The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing the State. When the Hope on Haven Hill program opens its doors it will allow
mothers to remain with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder.
The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they
can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF
program is to promote the independence of needy families through work, and education. Hope
on Haven Hill will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate
care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our
community. The vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and removing
barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger
community. The services will support families in ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants’
substance use disorders.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

e Anger management classes

o Coping skills

e Childbirth education classes

e Nurturing parenting classes

o Lactation services

¢ Therapeutic play

¢ Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 3 of 3

pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five (5) and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, preghant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

. Smith
Director

Approved by: M M=

firey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
sn nrataddtno annnrfunities for citizens to achreve fzea]t]] and fndependence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: OPEN DOORS Homelessness Prevention & Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use

Disorders (SS-2017-DFA-01-Opend-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism.

1.4 Contractor Address
615 Amherst Street
Nashua, NH 03063

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number
(603) 305-6586

1.6 Account Number
05-95-45-450010-6146

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2017 $500,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.11 Contractor S)lgnature

wc/~ \\MMV/

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
loter Welleher
Prosident and CEC

1.13 Acknowledgement State of N H’

, County of H’f bbéjf[!ﬂ?h

On J \,} z ﬂ q aip , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person 1dent1ﬁed\m?ﬂo%k’ 1"12 o satisfactorily

proven to
indicated in block 1.12.

¢ the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s’he execut@ thlS H’éc

the capacity
SLE \M‘E O p 2

b&‘

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seal] NU\CX nC\WaO md/ﬂ?l&

mmsmawh

e

1.13.2 Name and Title o ary or Justice of the Peace

-/

1.14 State A

’/‘N/ Date: Q/}/L‘

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

iy Con (7 Daedi DR

1.16 Approval ﬁym.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicdble)

By:

Director, On:

1.17 Approvﬁal by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

~

BU//\ MUAL g -

1.18 Approval By the Governbr 3nd Executive diounat {if applica
By:

bze)\ [4

3/ tc;ﬂu

On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2 of 4

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials Q‘/
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,

-the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State. ..

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of

detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement,
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers® Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposés to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no
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such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23, SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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Exhibit A

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8.

$8-2017-DFA-02-Opend-01
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The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual family
unless the parent is employed in which case services can be extended,;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement, including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health insurance.

The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment as well as
either residential housing, supportive housing, and/or housing stabilization services
including wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women
who:

1.3.1.  Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or increase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with DHHS, specifically DFA, to
review/assist with program processes, service provision, and overall program
outcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DFA to ensure desired program
benchmarks are achieved timely.

The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:

1y
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1.9.
1.10.

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2, Informing and receiving the Department’s approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

The Contractor shall comply with the Department’s Sentinel Event Reporting.

The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or comparable
system to record all encounter notes, including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall:

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening
1.10.1.2. Feed determination
1.10.1.3. Admission
1.10.1.4. Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenrollment
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client’s progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1.

2.2

2.3.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials \QV/
$5-2017-DFA-02-Opend-01

The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services, as available.
2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.5. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate childcare.
2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.

The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women's
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ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women'’s
***** ~ T substance usedisorders. < o — -

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:

241,
2.4.2.
2.4.3.
244,
2.4.5.

Street outreach programs.

Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).
Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.
Posters placed in targeted areas.

Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.
2.4.5.2. Health care providers.
2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1.
252

Initial intakes.

Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1.

2.6.2.

2.6.3.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials
$8-2017-DFA-02-Opend-01
Date /l 90\ \(J

In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facility licensed as a residential treatment facility
pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing for up to four
(4) months, on or off site with the ability to provide onsite substance use
disorder treatment services. Supportive housing, may include, but is not
limited to, apartments within an apartment complex, group housing, or
shared housing. Funding for Supportive Housing services shall be limited to
4 months based off the TANF regulations around non assistance categories.

Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving scheduled onsite SUD
treatment services.
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2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.71.
2.7.2.
2.7.3.
2.7.4.
2.7.5.

Housing.
Food.

Clothing.
Diapers.

Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Contractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1.

2.8.2.

2.8.3.

2.8.4.

2.8.5.

Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.full.pdf .

Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to for children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected that the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare.

Supports for before and after school care are available for schooi age

- children.

Arrangements are in place that allows children to continue attending school.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:

2.9.1. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care

becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.

These services shall include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the
fetus for pregnant woman.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials QW/
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2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials Qv/
§S8-2017-DF A-02-Opend-01
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.2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises to assess and
' respond. T e e

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV and Tuberculosis (TB), which
shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.2.1. The risks of needle sharing.
2.9.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.2.4. Referral to HIV, HepC or TB treatment services, if necessary.
2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.
2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that includes, but is not limited to:
2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier.
2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.
2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services.
2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.
2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Asses clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use, in and of itself, is not used as grounds for discharging
clients from services being provided under this contract.

The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include but are not limited to:

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

=
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2.13.

2.14.

$S8-2017-DF A-02-Opend-01
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2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enroliment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4, Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/ TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this project, which shall include medical and behavioral health
services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of practice in
accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facility Rules, Part
He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation. These should include,
but are not limited to:
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2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC) or Board

2.15.

2.16.

2.17.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials
$8-2017-DFA-02-Opend-01

—of Mental-Health Licensed-Clinieian.

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs and/or LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One (1) half-time advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP) through
staffing or referral.

2.14.6. One (1) ful-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) director/executive director.

The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health
Epidemiologist in order to collect data, complete surveillance, and complete
evaluation of social determinants of health and other public health and community
health indicators.

The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department; and
2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge based on policies and process approved by the Department
within 30 days from the contract effective date.

2.17.2. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is maintained in a
state of an emergency.

2.17.3. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.3.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.3.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.3.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.3.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.3.5. Emergency closings.

Page 7 of 9 Date
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Exhibit A

2.18.

2.19.

2.20.

2.17.4. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.5. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited to:

2.17.5.1. Adult and infant CPR. (Spell out the CPR acronym)
2.17.5.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.5.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.5.4. Universal precautions.

The Contractor shall ensure substance use disorder treatment services in this
agreement continue beyond the contract end date. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termination of the contract period.

2.18.2. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for any
eligible services.

2.18.3. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from sources the
contractor may identify.

2.18.4. Continue to maintain and provide services the contractor already has in
place for the population at need.

The Contractor shall ensure Individual Service Plans (ISPs) are developed for all
program participants and include a housing stability plan. The Contractor shall
ensure all clients are assessed for referral to internal program and/or community
partners to receive services that may include but are not limited to:

2.19.1. Housing assistance.

2.19.2. Supportive services.

2.19.3. Child care.

2.19.4. Family reunification assistance.

2.19.5. Primary and behavioral health care.

2.19.6. Education and employment training/ support.

The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompliance
from the Department, if the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract.

2.21. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective action
plan described in Section 2.14, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:
3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials QV/
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Exhibit A

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing services in

' "'Th?prEViﬂﬂsmOnth;” ST B o

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

4.1.

4.2.

. 43.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no later
than 6 months after the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall ensure 95% of the individuals on the waiting list described in
Section 2.4.3 are reached or attempted to be contacted at least one time per week.

The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of program participants, including children,
create an Individual Service Plan (ISP), as described in Section 2.17 that includes a
housing stability plan. The following may also be part of the ISP:

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service im’plementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of 30 women and their
children in the Greater Nashua, NH region.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to the
Department for approval no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Section 2.8.2, 2.15.1 and
2.15.5 to the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.4.3 to
the Department once every two (2) months.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section 2.15.5 to
the Department no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in trainings
described in Section 2.15.5 to the Department no later than 30 days after the
contract effective date.

5.7. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.16.1 to the
Department no later than December 30, 2016.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials W/
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, in
accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or.in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism. Exhibit B Contractor Initials J
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

PECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as foliows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall inciude all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or ata
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is

T e -permitted-to-determine-the-eligibility of individuals for services;-the Contractoragreesto

reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services

provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at

any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shal! include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
1
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

! [
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees

— with-fewer than-50-employees;regardless-of the-amount-of the award, the recipient will provide an__
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOQP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-238) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials _‘ew
06/27/14 Page 4 of 5 Date j_




New Hampshire Departme of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5.  DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

-
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 4 —Gubparagraph-4-of-the-General-Provisions -of -this-contract; Conditional-Nature -of Agreement, is -

replaced as follows:

4.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination; the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

CU/DHHS/110713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1988 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

4.6, Taking-one-of the following actions, within-30-calendar days.of receiving notice under

subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contracter-Name: G

224 1 fo N/
Date Name: {Zler Kellor
Title:  fresident and CE€0
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title {V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title [V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Grqur ..j"\‘-’q (eins e Alcaha/fah
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

CU/DHHSM10713 Page 1 of 2

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,”.and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

7
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10.

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11.

12.

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezziement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and :

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14, The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contragter-iame: (redes Nasha (oncil on Meohlish
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

- '*"’*WHlSTLEBLOWER—EROTEcTIoNS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy- -making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

L M lehels
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penaity of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor-Nare: é“,'{c.‘lef !\]Gft\va (dv‘"\c.i‘ €A A}[Ci’chkh
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. ‘Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

“Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. ‘HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j.  “Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

Contractor Initials L
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“Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR

~Section 164.103. T

(2)

a.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
l. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
iil. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI! will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

312014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials ﬂ -
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3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be -
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’'s business associate

agreements with Contractor’s intended business associates, who will be receiving&l
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard

3/12014

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of -~ ————

protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business QW

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act !
Business Associate Agreement ( (ﬂ
Page 4 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

(4)

(5)

(6)

3/2014

Associate maintains such PHL. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI. '

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. V

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
Health Insurance Portability Act (
Business Associate Agreement q { @
Page 5 of 6 Date
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Exhibit |

e Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any

person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect othertermsor — "

conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the

defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |.

s (J:(EC\“{Qr AZWLUC;-&U‘HC” i Mlechelism

The State__~ /Z/ Name of th ’Contra\;t\oz) 1\ D
@ ﬁf& sl (ZQ l }XJ\)

Signature-of Authorized Representative  Signature of Authorizéd Répresettative

/fn/u—/ %/‘71/" @H\er Me}\er

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
frosident ad (£O
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
Date Date
3/2014 Exhibit Contractor Initials .Oé/

Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
Page 6 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA} COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications resuit in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award titie descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SNl wN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.
/ 'ﬂyz‘
/

Cr&w qu“vh ﬂvj\bi[ N /}/(ch /”/‘1
. i\ (
el 1 SN

Date ' Name: {le- Iéellzhb/

Title: p(‘@;ym't‘ af\cs CEO

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials &V

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance /]L
CU/DHHS110713 Page 1 of 2 Date g’ ”ﬂ




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

" "Asthe Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions; 1certify that the responses tothe - —
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: (0 -26{- §707

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the foliowing:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

v

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance , \‘P
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 Date
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #7 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #1”°) dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 326 Rochester Hill Road,
Rochester, NH 03867.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services
based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration
of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CA/DHHS/100213



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Munct 1, 4017 “gF ,";/7‘{5'/
Date Terry Smith

Director

Contractor Name:

waacy S z2ay7 w/\m

Date ’ Name: Wgvin Tad
Title: ¢ g - 3oaeD ¢F DiefeTol

Acknowled

State of /Z’um.cgl.»/eCounty of ) J‘/Ca (‘(wy{ on 3 /¢ /9'20/7 ,
before the undersngned officer, personally appeared the person identifiel above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

DAVID W, MARTINELL!
Justice of the Peace - New Hampshire
My Commission Expires July 24, 2018

Name ard Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

CA/DHHS/100213
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

MBI VY-
Date | ' 1"_‘;’;‘:9: i\')gm QATQZ/ }

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213



State of Nefw Hampshire
HBepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Hope on Haven Hill Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation filed
November 25, 2015. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3" day of December, A.D. 2015

Tty ekl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

L, Kevin S. lrwin , do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Oftficer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Hope on Haven Hill

(Agency Name)
2. The foliowing is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on November 2, 2016
{Date)

RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors Chair

(Titie of Contract Signatory)
is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the __5th___ dayof __March ,2017___ .
(Date Cantract Signed)
4. __Kevin lrwin is the duly elected _ Board of Directors Chair
{(Name of Contract Signatary) {Title of Contract Signatary)
of the Agency. \ -
J‘ v
\

(Signéfﬁre of the Elected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of 1 m@vc)\

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 5 day of ]M&xn/lf\‘ 20_1 1

By Kevin \vwin _ o:ﬁw.mmem
Naime ¢f Elected Officer of the Agency;) JMyusticce ; I' wE °| July' '“24'? 20“;;

{Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

INDTARY 87 AL

Comnission Expires: ZA ‘1’/% &

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



A HOPEH-1 OP ID: KMJ
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE e

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. if SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Kilbride & Harris
Insurance Services LLC
210 Western Avenue
So. Portland, ME 04106

Rame: Melony J. Hunt

F;-\};gNNEo Ext): 207-774-7919 J_(?\A/é, No): 207-774-7920

EMAL <s: mhunt@khinsurance.com

Melony J. Hunt INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insureR A : North American Specialty Co
INSURED Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. :
PO Box 1272 MSURERD:
Rochester, NH 03867 INSURER C :
INSURER D :
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR DDL R
LTR

POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
MM/DD/YYYY]

TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD _|WVD POLICY NUMBER ) [(MM/DD/YYYY LIMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
X] cLamsmave || ocowr TBD-Q186155-0114 08/01/2016 | 08/01/2017 [ BAFACETORENTED ¢ 50,000
MED EXP (Any one person) | $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
I
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
pOLICY D o [ iec PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 1,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE UM
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ey $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
ALL QINED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident}| $
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per acadent) $
$
UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED [ | RETENTION $ - — $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PE -
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN | SFhnure J B
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? [:] N/A
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] $
¥ yes, describe under
DESCRIPHION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
A [Professional TBD-Q1861SS-0114 08/01/2016 | 08/01/2017 |Per Claim 1,000,000
Liability Aggregate 3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Melony J. Hunt

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL

226 ROCHESTER HILL RD, ROCHESTER

Mission: To provide a nurturing home envivonment to preguant women with a
Substance Use Disorder who arve in recovery, along with thelr children, for up to
a year postpartum.

Viston: By providing a safe home with comprehensive addiction treatment
services, family therapy, parenting classes, advancement in education and Life
coaching we will support families in their Recovery from addiction. An
enriched self-esteem, confidence and a tool-belt full of Life skills will proneote
independence and sustained Sobriety.

qoal: To open owr doors and accept vesidents by Septenmber 1, 2016. Sooner, if
the stars align, as we are hoping they do. 501c2 Nowprofit status is pending.
Fiscal Sponsorship is through New Futures of Concord, NH.

ewmail: V;opeowhave»«»hitL@amait.com

Facebook: Wttp://www facebook.com

website: www.hopeowhavewhiu.om

Mailing Address: Hope On Haven Hill PO Box 1272, Rochester, NH 02867

Donations can ve made directly by check or cash sent directly to the PO Box
Listeo above, checks can be made out to Hope On Haven Hill, or through our
GoFundMe account which can be found on the website.



Carvotta, Ami

¥ Fiianoed Staomerts

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

HI Ami

Mary Ellen Jackson <maryellenjacksonconsulting@gmail.com>

Wednesday, March 08, 2017 3:51 PM

Carvotta, Ami; Mary Ellen Jackson

FInancial reports

HHH 123116 BALANCE SHEET revised.pdf; HHH 123116 STMT OF ACTIVITY revised.pdf;
FinancialsBoardAgenda.pdf

We are less than 2 months old, so we wont have an audit yet
But here is what | can provide, | have asked our CPA if he has more to offer and will get that to you

tomorrow.

Mary Ellen Jackson
maryellenjacksonconsultingfzgmail.com
Consulting and Interim Executive Dlrector

Hope on Haven Hill
603-397-717 cell
207-361-3068 home

') erdoy @(W\c\o_d LS kot of forgmcne ()oS’bﬁtm %&ZQWU%

ab Acﬂc\v‘\)(i,)



HOPE ON HAVEN HILL

INDEPENDENT AUDIT POLICY

It is the policy of Hope on Haven Hill (HHH) to undergo an annual independent audit, under
the direction of the Finance Committee Committee, in order to fulfill requirements established
by federal and state regulatory bodies, as well as to ensure on-going accountability to its
funders, members, constituents and the general public.

The audit process shall comply with the following:

e The audit will be completed no later than four and a half months from the close of the
fiscal period (unless cause for delay can be substantiated and approved by the Audit
Committee).

e The audit will be conducted in compliance with the AICPA Audit & Accounting Guide
for Not For-Profit Organizations, and generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS).

¢ The audit will encompass the entire scope of the organization's activities, including all
departments, or entities that operate under the auspices of HHH.

o The audit shall utilize a two (2) year reporting format on all financial statements.

Audit footnote disclosures will follow the disclosure requirements as set forth by the most
currently applicable accounting standards, and, at a minimum, include the following:

. Description of organization

. Description of funds

. Description of programs

. Description of significant accounting policies

. Method for allocating costs

. Method for computing depreciation

. Method for computing supporting service costs (overhead/organizational)
. Summary of long-term commitments

. Summary of significant accounting adjustments

HHH will annually request and receive a written management letter, addressing internal control
issues, or a written document stating that a management letter was requested but not warranted.

HHH shall respond to all management letter issues identified in writing. HHH's responses
shall be incorporated into the body of the management letter to:

¢ Ensure inclusion to any subsequent distributions of that document.

e Create a complete and formal record of issues and actions taken for future reference.



The audit draft document and management letter will be:

1. Presented to the HHH Audit Committee for review;
Discussed initially with the auditor in executive session;

Then discussed with management; and

»ow

Considered and voted upon for approval and recommendation to the Board of Directors

for final action.

ADOPTED: November 2, 2016.



Hope On Haven Hill

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31, 2016

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
1001 Checking-Profile 4,178.97
1002 Provident Checking 38,427.97
1003 Provident Bank Escrow Savings 12,000.78
1010 Provident Payrolt Checking 50.00
Total Bank Accounts $54,657.72
Accounts Receivable
1100 Pledges/donations Receivable 58,101.80
Total Accounts Receivable $58,101.80
Other Current Assets
1550 Gift Cards ON HAND (Rec’d IN 600.00
KIND)

Total Other Current Assets $600.00
Total Current Assets $113,359.52
Fixed Assets

1600 LHI-Start Up 60,386.93

1601 LHI-Paid from CDBG Grant 103,794.50

1610 Furniture and Fixtures 8,380.00

1700 Vehicles 16,294.00
Total Fixed Assets $188,855.43

TOTAL ASSETS $302,214.95
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00
Total Accounts Payable $0.00

Total Current Liabilities $0.00
Total Liabilities $0.00
Equity

3200 Retained Earnings 70,071.35

Net Revenue 232,143.60
Total Equity $302,214.95

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $302,214.95

Note

Accounts Receivable item is DHHS Contract for DEC to be received in JAN, $58,101.80.

Accrual Basis

7



Hope On Haven Hill

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of January 31, 2017

TOTAL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Bank Accounts
1001 Checking-Profile 1,372.11
1002 Provident Checking 153,370.38
1003 Provident Bank Escrow Savings 12,001.78
1010 Provident Payroli Checking -1,124.25
1050 Provident Acct-Online Purchase Deposits 230.52
Total Bank Accounts $165,850.54
Accounts Receivable
1100 Pledges/donations Receivable 65,745.04
Total Accounts Receivable $65,745.04
Other Current Assets
1550 Gift Cards ON HAND (Rec'd IN KIND) 572.24
Total Other Current Assets $572.24
Total Current Assets $232,167.82
Fixed Assets
1600 LHI-Start Up 61,809.96
1601 LHI-Paid from CDBG Grant 103,794.50
1610 Furniture and Fixtures 8,380.00
1620 Equipment 3,000.00
1700 Vehicles 16,294.00
Total Fixed Assets $193,278.46
TOTAL ASSETS $425,446.28
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2100 Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00
Total Accounts Payable $0.00
Other Current Liabilities
2500 Provident Line of Credit 0.00
Total Other Current Liabilities $0.00
Total Current Liabilities $0.00
Total Liabitities $0.00
Equity
3200 Retained Earnings 70,071.35
Net Revenue 355,374.93
Total Equity $425,446.28
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $425,446.28

Accrual Basis

11



Hope On Haven Hill

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
July - December, 2016

TOTAL
REVENUE
4000 Donations - Unrestricted 97,120.48
4005 Donations - Temporarily Restricted 2,750.00
4200 Gift In Kind Donations 4,030.17
4400 Sales of Promo Product Revenue 400.00
4600 Services - DHHS Etc 168,565.80
4700 Grants Income 6,000.00
4705 GRANTS Income - Restricted 127,456.00
Total Revenue $406,322.45
GROSS PROFIT $406,322.45
EXPENDITURES
5000 PROGRAMMING
5010 PROGRAMMING-Housing Expenses 249.66
5020 PROGRAMMING-FOOD Expenses 1,470.55
5025 PROGRAMMING-Education Materials 1,998.69
5030 PROGRAMMING-Other 1,474.53
Materials/Supplies
5040 PROGRAMMING-Resident-family 861.04
Expenses
5050 Programming-IN KIND Donations 185.66
Total 5000 PROGRAMMING 6,240.13
6010 Advertising 190.00
6020 Bank Charges 1.00
6030 Board of Directors & Volunteer 153.90
Expenses
6035 Business Licenses & fees 200.00
6040 Dues & Subscriptions 282.74
6100 Fundraising Expenses 195.92
6200 Insurance
6205 Insurance - D&O 1,712.00
6210 Insurance - Liability 8,133.81
6230 Insurance - Workers Comp 14,329.10
Total 6200 Insurance 24,174.91
6400 Legal & Professional Fees
6406 Accounting & Bookkeeping IN KIND 2,035.00
6415 Management Consulting 11,220.00
Total 6400 Legal & Professional Fees 13,255.00
6500 Office Expenses
6505 Office Supplies 3,537.99
6506 Office Supplies/Expenses IN KIND 140.74
6510 Stationery & Printing 520.29
6515 Postage and Shipping 76.40
6520 TELEPHONES, Internet Access, Etc 1,753.22

Accrual Basis

1/2



TOTAL

6525 CELL PHONE Expenses
Total 6500 Office Expenses

6600 PAYROLL EXPENSES

6601 Executive Director

6602 Program Director

6604 Clinical Director

6605 SALARIES AND WAGES-ADMIN
6606 Substance Ab Coun/Case Manager
6607 SALARIES and WAGES-PROGRAM
6608 SALARIES and WAGES-Fundraising
6610 Administrative Assistant

6611 Recovery Support Staff

6618 Payroll Taxes-Employer Portion
6619 Payroll Taxes - NH UI&Admin

6620 Employee Benefits

6650 Payroll Service Fees

6651 PAYROLL Time Clock Fees

6652 Paychex Retirement Services Fees
6655 Employment and Hiring Expenses
Total 6600 PAYROLL EXPENSES

6675 Promotional Expenses/Products
6700 Rent or Lease

6710 Repair & Maintenance

6720 Computer IT Repairs & Maint
6725 Facilities Repairs

6730 Grounds Maintenance

6735 Cleaning Expenses

6740 Security & Alarm Fees

6745 Trash Removal Fees
Total 6710 Repair & Maintenance
6750 Professional Development
6755 Certifications and Licensures
6760 Seminars & Continuing Ed
Total 6750 Professional Development
6900 Utilities

Total Expenditures

NET OPERATING REVENUE
OTHER REVENUE

7000 Interest Earned
Total Other Revenue

OTHER EXPENDITURES
8000 Miscellaneous
8040 Furnishings at Startup
8050 Furnishings - IN KIND
Total Other Expenditures
NET OTHER REVENUE

NET REVENUE

463.89
6,492.53

0.00
13,750.00
17,444.17
14,953.13

0.00
17,230.87

0.00

0.00

6,550.31
13,896.37
6,383.92
1,653.79
5,618.40
690.05
165.00
755.01
576.95
99,667.97

975.97
8,400.00

3,868.48
435.47
291.88
69.95
346.00
81.01

5,092.79

240.00
890.40
1,130.40

1,162.81
$167,616.07

$238,706.38

0.78
$0.78

3.32
5,477.76
1,082.48

$6,563.56
$-6,562.78

$232,143.60

Accrual Basis
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Hope On Haven Hill

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITY
July 2016 - January 2017

Accrual Basis

TOTAL
REVENUE
4000 Donations - Unrestricted 200,916.62
4001 Donations-Business Community 4,060.90
4005 Donations - Temporarily Restricted 7,750.00
4200 Gift In Kind Donations 4,243.92
4400 Sales of Promo Product Revenue 620.50
4600 Services - DHHS Etc 234,310.84
4700 Grants income 10,000.00
4705 GRANTS Income - Restricted 132,456.00
Total Revenue $594,358.78
GROSS PROFIT $594,358.78
EXPENDITURES
5000 PROGRAMMING
5001 PROGRAMMING-Child Care 69.20
Expenses
5003 PROGRAMMING-Clothing Expenses 77.45
5004 PROGRAMMING-Resident Medical 390.59
Expenses
5010 PROGRAMMING-Housing Expenses 361.28
5015 PROGRAMMING-Laundry Expenses - 727.32
Offsite
5020 PROGRAMMING-FOOQOD Expenses 4,199.29
5021 Programming-IN KIND Donations 185.66
5025 PROGRAMMING-Other Resident 484.28
Expenses-Non Medical
5035 PROGRAMMING-Resident Books 214.65
and Activities
5040 PROGRAMMING-Family Support 888.04
Expenses
Total 5000 PROGRAMMING 7,597.76
5100 PROGRAMMING-Other 1,968.47
Materials/Supplies
5200 PROGRAMMING-Education Materials 1,998.69
6000 PAYROLL EXPENSES 0.00
6001 Executive Director 17,882.82
6002 Program Director 22,44417
6004 Clinical Director 20,671.36
6005 SALARIES AND WAGES-ADMIN 0.00
6006 Substance Ab Coun/Case Manager 25,607.82
6007 SALARIES and WAGES-PROGRAM 0.00
6008 SALARIES and WAGES-Fundraising 0.00
6010 Administrative Assistant 8,911.91
6011 Recovery Support Staff 28,754.87
6018 Payroll Taxes-Employer Portion 9,465.42

113



TOTAL

6019 Payroll Taxes - NH UI&Admin
6020 Employee Benefits
Total 6000 PAYROLL EXPENSES

6200 Insurance

6205 Insurance - D&O

6210 Insurance - Liability

6215 Insurance - Workers Comp
Total 6200 Insurance

6300 Interest Expense
6400 Professional Fees & Consultants
6405 Accounting and Bookkeeping
6406 Accounting & Bookkeeping IN KIND
6415 Management Consulting
6450 PAYROLL fees
6451 Payroll Processing Fees
6452 Paychex Retirement Services Fees
6453 PAYROLL Time Clock Fees
Total 6450 PAYROLL fees

6460 Employment and Hiring Expenses

Total 6400 Professional Fees & Consultants

6500 Office Expenses - Consumable
Supplies
6505 Office Supplies
6506 Office Supplies/Expenses IN KIND
6510 Stationery & Printing
6515 Postage and Shipping
6520 TELEPHONES, Internet Access, Etc
6525 CELL PHONE Expenses
Total 6500 Office Expenses - Consumable
Supplies
6600 OTHER Expenses
6605 Advertising
6610 Bank Charges

6615 Board of Directors & Volunteer
Expenses

6620 Business Licenses & fees
6625 Dues & Subscriptions
Total 6600 OTHER Expenses

6700 OCCUPANCY Costs
6705 Rent or Lease
6710 Repair & Maintenance
6720 Computer IT Repairs & Maint
6725 Facilities Repairs
6726 Grounds Maintenance
6727 Cleaning Expenses
6728 Security & Alarm Fees
6729 Trash Removal Fees
Total 6710 Repair & Maintenance

6740 Utilities

Accrual Basis

3,235.60
8,630.44
145,604.41

1,712.00
8,329.81
14,329.10
24,370.91

2.73

360.00
2,248.75
12,740.00

1,051.47
1,006.68

220.00
2,278.15

604.95
18,231.85

3,889.98
140.74
520.29
122.85

1,753.22
463.89

6,890.97

190.00
170.00
153.90

200.00
322.69
1,036.59

10,600.00

3,868.48
603.97
719.21

69.95
457.00
189.46

5,908.07

1,225.27
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TOTAL

Total 6700 OCCUPANCY Costs

6750 Staff Development and Training
6755 Certifications and Licensures
6760 Seminars & Continuing Ed
Total 6750 Staff Development and Training
6850 TRANSPORTATION-AUTO
6855 Vehicle - Gas
6870 Vehicle Registration
Total 6850 TRANSPORTATION-AUTO
6900 FUNDRAISING Expenses

6925 Promotional Expenses/Products
Total 6900 FUNDRAISING Expenses
6999 Uncategorized Expenditure

Total Expenditures
NET OPERATING REVENUE

OTHER REVENUE
7000 Interest Earned
Total Other Revenue

OTHER EXPENDITURES
8000 Miscellaneous
8040 Furnishings at Startup
8050 Furnishings - IN KIND
Total Other Expenditures
NET OTHER REVENUE

NET REVENUE

17,733.34

240.00
965.40
1,205.40

258.79
82.00
340.79
195.92
975.97
1,171.89
2,622.87
$230,776.67

$363,582.11

1.80
$1.80

-53.69
7.180.19
1,082.48

$8,208.98
$-8,207.18

$355,374.93

Note

CHART OF ACCOUNTS UPDATED JAN 2017 therefore reports. Accounts may have new numbers and new location on the profit and

loss.

Accrual Basis
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Colene Armold, MD, FACOG

Certification January 2006, current
Diplomat of the Board of Medical Examiners
Board Certified — American Board of OB/Gyn

Residency July 1999 - June 2003
University of Oklahoma Health Sciences Center
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Medical School 1999
University of Oklahoma College of Medicine
* Doctor of Medicine
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Undergraduate 1991
Yale University School of Medicine
* Graduate Physician Associate Program
New Haven, Connecticut

1986

University of Connecticut

= BS, Medical Technology
Storrs, Connecticut

Spedialty Obstetrics and Gynecology
Licensure New Hampshire - 2003 - Present
Work History July 2015-Present

Hope On Haven Hill, Executive Director

Co-Founder of a charitable, nonprofit, 501(c) 3, 24 hour Residential Facility for
pregnant women with substance use disorder who require a higher level of care
than what an outpatient treatment program can provide. Obtained necessary
variances from municipality for a Residential Facility to be opened in my
current home, developed NH nonprofit and federal exempt status organization,
created Board of Directors, developed budget, grant writing, fundraising,
planning infrastructure to maintain sustainability, engaged in licensing facility
through NH state DHHS.

August 2003 - Present

Garrison Women's Health Center, Dover, NH

*  Full-time practicing gynecology, Lab Director
*  Active staff, Wentworth Douglass Hospital

Colene M. C. Amold, MD

[nitials & Date
2008



Present Appointments

August 2003-Present
Goodwin Community Health Center, Somersworth, NH

s Consultant for High Risk Pregnancy, special interest in Substance Use
Disorder

August 1996 - August 1997
Creek Nation Indian Hospital

= Physician Assistant per diem ER/primary care rural hospital

August 1995 - March 1997
USPHS Bureau of Prisons

» Physician Assistant per diem
= Provided emergency and primary health care to prison population
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

January 1994 -~ August 1995, Summer 1996
USPHS Clinton Indian Hospital, Clinton, OK
= Physician Assistant, HIV Coordinator

» Provided primary and emergency health care to Cheyenne and Arapaho
tribes of Oklahoma.

December 1991 - January 1994

Konawa Community Health Center, Konowa, Oklahoma

= Physician Assistant, Lab Director, HIV Coordinator

» Developed and implemented successful perinatal program.

* Experience in providing health care to isolated rural areas via mobile health
outreach van

July 1986 - December 1991

St. Joseph Medical Center, Stamford, CT

= Medical Technologist, ASCP/NCA certified

» Generalist with special emphasis in Blood Banking

s Active Staff appointment since August 2003
Wentworth Douglass Hospital, Dover, New Hampshire
Birth Center Committee appointment 2003-present

" Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Board of Directors,
Strafford County, NH

o 2013-present, Executive Board 2013-2015 Secretary
o 2016-present Treasurer '

Colene M. C. Amold, MD

Initials & Date
2008



Professional Societies

Advanced
Certifications

Honors

Research/ Publications

Presentations

American College of Obstetrics and Gynecology
New Hampshire Medical Society

- National Osteoporosis Foundation. - -~ — -

International Pelvic Pain Society

American Society for Colposcopy & Cervical Pathology
New Hampshire Center For Nonprofits

New Hampshire Providers Association

Advanced Neonatal Life Support (NALS)
Physician Assistant, formerly NCCPA Certified
Medical Technologist, formerly ASCP, NCA Certified

Resident representative for Medical Mission to Bolivia 2002.
Ciba-Geneva Community Service Award, 1996-1997

Family And Community Medicine Interest Group Award for Outstanding
Leadership, 1996-1997

Scholarship Award, American Academy of Physician Assistants, 1990
Scholarship Award, Connecticut Academy of Physician Assistants, 1990
Scholarship Award, General federation of Women'’s Clubs, 1990

Indications for Labor Induction: Differences Between University and
Community Hospitals. Journal of Reproductive Medicine. 2000; 45:469-475

Low Backache During Pregnancy: Acute Hemodynamic Effects of a Lumbar
Support. Journal of Reproductive Medicine. 1999; 44:1007-1011

Coping with Menopausal Symptoms, Breast Cancer Support Group
Wentworth Douglass Hospital September 2007

HPV Vaccine Primary Cervical Cancer Prevention Wentworth Douglass
Hospital Grand Rounds September 2007

HPV Vaccine, Cervical Cancer Prevention, Community Lecture Series,
Wentworth Douglass Hospital, September 2006

Demystifying Pap and HPV Testing in 2006, Wentworth Douglass
Hospital, Grand Rounds May 2006

Substance Abuse in Pregnancy, Planned Parenthood Chapters of
Oklahoma City, February 2002

Grand Rounds, October 2001, OUHSC Department of Obstetrics and
Gynecology Substance Abuse in Pregnancy

Colene M. C. Arnold, MD

Initials & Date
2008



Kerrylee Norton, RN

OBIJECTIVE: Obtain Position as Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT)-RN

WORK EXPIERENCE

Dates Employed

7/1/15- Present Chief Operating Officer
Hope on Haven Hill, Rochester NH

Co-Founder of emerging Non Profit Residential Treatment facility for Pregnant Women with
Substance use Disorder. Responsibilities include but not limited to, Filing for 501 ¢(3), Grant
writing, preparing and testifying for Variance and Planning Board, Submitting application for
Lev el 4 inpatient treatment facility licensure, Prepare policies and admission criteria,
prepare Facility policies, Coordinate fundraising and volunteers, Give presentations to local
schools, Civic agencies, businesses and NH allies, Advocate for Prevention, Treatment and
Recovery services for NH and care for Men and Women who reach out to us while unable to
access care in NH and on a Volunteer basis assist them with getting support and treatment.

11/2008- 11/13/15 RN
Garrison Women'’s Health Center, Dover Nh

Triage and Infertility Nurse In busy OB-GYN office. Responsibilities include but not limited to,
triaging all patient calls, New Prenatal OB intakes, Essure Procedures, Infertility coverage
including call weekends, Employee health, OSHA Training and compliance for all employees,
new hire training and policy and protocol implementation.

1/2006- 4/2010 RN, CPSN,
Atlantic Plastic Surgical Center, Portsmouth NH

All Facets of care for patients undergoing Ambulatory Surgery, Admit patients, Circulate and
Scrub during surgical cases and Recover patients in PACU. Certified as a Certified Plastic
Surgical Nurse with National Certification in Skin Weliness. Cerified to perfom
Microdermabrasions, Chemical Peels and Laser therapy.




5/1994- 10/2008 Maternal Child Nurse
Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth NH 7 Resource Nurse

All Facets of Maternal Health, Including Labor and Delivery, Postpartum, Well Baby Nusery,
Level 2 Nursery, Pediatrics, Scrub and PACU for Cesarean Sections, Breast Feeding support,
Sibling Class Facilitator, NRP instructor, PALS instructor, Resource Nurse and Staff
Orientation.

1/2000- 1/2005 Pediatric Nurse
Portsmouth Pediatric Associates, Portsmouth NH

Weekend Coverage for Triage and Care for sick visits of all Pediatric patients in a very busy
Pediatric Practice. As the only nurse covering on weekends | became very competent in all
facets of pediatric care and emergencies.

1/2002- 1/2005 Triage Nurse and Childbirth Educator
Harbour Women’s Health, Portsmouth NH

Triaged all patient medical concerns, Reviewed all Laboratory reports and followed up with
Patients results, and treatment protocols. Assisted Dr. Lantinen with Infertilty patients.
Taught and Coordinated all Childbirth Education Porgrams.

5/1993- 5/1995 Triage Nurse

York OB-GYN Associates, York Me

Triage all patient concerns and assist physicians with patient care.

9/1993-5/1994 Substitute School Nurse
SAD 60, Berwick ME

Substitute School Nurse in SAD 60. Worked in all School settings. Elementary, Middle Schoo!
and High School.

Past and Present Cerfications:

NRP, BCLS, ACLS, CPSN and STABLE. Maine State Registered Nurse

License compact state

References upon Request



5/1994- 10/2008 Maternal Child Nurse
Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth NH Resource Nurse

All Facets of Maternal Health, Including Labor and Delivery, Postpartum, Well Baby Nusery,
Level 2 Nursery, Pediatrics, Scrub and PACU for Cesarean Sections, Breast Feeding support,
Sibling Class Facilitator, NRP instructor, PALS instructor, Resource Nurse and Staff
Orientation.

1/2000- 1/2005 Pediatric Nurse
Portsmouth Pediatric Associates, Portsmouth NH

Weekend Coverage for Triage and Care for sick visits of all Pediatric patients in a very busy
Pediatric Practice. As the only nurse covering on weekends | became very competent in all
facets of pediatric care and emergencies.

1/2002- 1/2005 Triage Nurse and Childbirth Educator
Harbour Women’s Health, Portsmouth NH

Triaged all patient medical concerns, Reviewed all Laboratory reports and followed up with
Patients results, and treatment protocols. Assisted Dr. Lantinen with Infertilty patients.
Taught and Coordinated all Childbirth Education Porgrams.

5/ 1993; 5/1995 Triage Nurse

York OB-GYN Associates, York Me

Triage all patient concerns and assist physicians with patient care.

9/1993-5/1994 Substitute School Nurse
SAD 60, Berwick ME

Substitute School Nurse in SAD 60. Worked in all School settings. Elementary, Middle School
and High School.

Past and Present Cerfications:

NRP, BCLS, ACLS, CPSN and STABLE. Maine State Registered Nurse

License compact state

References upon Request



Jennifer Stout, M.A, LCSW, LICSW, MLADC

Education:

Boston University, Boston, MA
Master of Social Work (MSW), May 2004
Clinical Major

University of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia, PA
Master of Sociology (MA), Dec 2002
Concentration in Drug Abuse and Poverty

Haverford College, Haverford, PA
Bachelor of Arts (BA), May 1997

Licensure:

Licensed Clinical Social Worker, Maine, May 2008 (current)
Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, New Hampshire, February 2011 (current)
Master Alcohol and Drug Counselor, New Hampshire, November 2012 (current)

Related Experience:

Manchester Community Health Center 3/15 — Present

Provide individual assessment and treatment for individuals with mental health and substance use disorders
in a community health care setting. Provide brief and longer term counseling, as well as specialized
substance abuse and trauma treatment to clients as appropriate, including Seeking Safety, DBT, and
Progressive Counting. Work with medical staff, interpreters, nutritionists and community workers to
provide integrated care for a diverse population. Supervise clinicians towards MLADC certification.

R.0.A.D To a Better Life 6/14-Present

Therapist

Provided initial assessment and treatment planning for clients participating in Suboxone treatment program.
Maintained a caseload of individual therapy clients diagnosed with co-occurring disorders. Planned and
facilitated 3-4 therapy groups per week, including gender specific programming for women, exploring
topics such as the science of addiction, relapse prevention, recovery skills and healthy relationships.

Families First Health and Support Center 12/10-6/14

Homeless Health Care Program/ Prenatal Care Program

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Counselor

Provided individual and group substance abuse counseling in the community to individuals who were
homeless. Worked closely with medical and care coordination staff on the mobile health care van to meet
and offer services to clients in a timely manner. Offered assessment, treatment planning and ongoing
counseling using motivational interviewing, cognitive behavioral, DBT, and trauma-informed approaches.
Offered crisis intervention services as needed, often working closely with other local agencies to respond
best to clients needs.

Counseling Services, Inc, Biddeford, ME 9/04-8/10

-Clinician, Crisis Response Services: Provided telephone support and assessment, as well as face-to-face
assessments for adults and children experiencing psychiatric emergencies. Work with clients, agency
supervisors and psychiatrists to create a disposition that maintains client safety in the least restrictive
setting.

-Clinical Case Manager: Provided supportive counseling and case management services to adults with
severe and persistent mental illness. As member of Intensive Community Integration team, worked with



clients needing a high level of care. Facilitated family meetings, provided crisis intervention services, took
part in weekly multi-disciplinary team meeting. Co-facilitated skills building and activity group weekly.

VA Boston Healthcare System, Boston, MA 9/03-5/04

Social Work Intern/ Substance Abuse and Homelessness Programs

Provided counseling services to veterans in recovery from substance abuse. Trained and certified in
Seeking Safety protocol which provides skills-based therapy to clients with PTSD and substance abuse. Co-
facilitated two dual-diagnosis groups. Assisted in intake process at New England Shelter for Homeless
Veterans.

Tewksbury State Hospital, Tewksbury, MA 9/02-5/03

Social Work Intern/ Inpatient Psychiatry Unit

Performed intakes and assessments, provided case management, supportive counseling, and crisis
intervention services for individuals with severe and persistent mental iliness on a locked psychiatric unit.
Facilitated family meetings and developed treatment and discharge plans .

Group Facilitation
s R.0.A.D To a Better Life: Facilitate a woman’s group and mixed gender group weekly, exploring
topics such as relapse prevention, recovery skills, mindfulness, healthy relationships, and
motivational enhancement. 6/15- Present.
e Crossroads House: Facilitate a weekly “Mindfulness in Recovery” group for men living,
e Bonfire Recovery: Working to develop group programming for men’s sober house.

Teaching/ Training
¢ Adjunct Faculty, York County Community College, Well, ME: Teach Introduction to
Psychology and Abnormal Psychology. Develop course syllabus, evaluate student success
through exams, oral presentations, and research papers, deliver instruction in a face to face
environment, 2010-present.
Conference Presentations
¢  “Understanding High Risk Behaviors and Providing Trauma Informed Care for Social Workers”
NASW Pennsylvania Chapter, October 2015 (upcoming)
¢  “Understanding High Risk Behaviors and Providing Trauma Informed Care in a Homeless
Healthcare Setting”. National Health Care for the Homeless Conference and Policy Symposium,
May, 2014.
¢ “Providing Trauma-Informed Care: Opportunities for Home Visitors”. New Hampshire
Children’s Trust Annual Conference: Substance Abuse During Pregnancy and Beyond, May
2013. Upcoming:
Agency Trainings
e “Providing Trauma-Informed Care for Shelter Residents” Staff Training: Crossroads House,
Portsmouth, 2012, 2013, 2014.
o  “Introduction to Trauma Informed Care”, Staff Training, Families First, Portsmouth, NH, 2014,

VYolunteer Work

Prevention Point Philadelphia, Needle Exchange, Philadelphia, PA 1994-1997, 1999-2002
DBHART Disaster Relief Volunteer, Concord, NH 2012- Present.

Rockingham County Jail- Substance abuse and Stress Management group for inmates



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Colene Amold, MD Executive Director $31.25/Mr 50% $16,250
0.5FTE
$32,500
Kerry Norton, RN Program Director $31.25/hr 50% $32,500
$65,000
Jen Stout LCISW, Clinical Director $31.25/hr 50% $32,500
MLADC $65,000
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE
129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX:603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

deffrey A. Meyers
Commisgioner

Cnit ™ A

July 25, 2048 iy A0

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan y ~

and the Honorable Executive Council Date J l (;
State House T “"‘j‘(‘“’““*"‘ ——
Concord, NH 03301 from £ C\R%Q v A

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. (Vendor # TBD), 326 Rochester Hill Road,
Rochester, NH 03867 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services,
residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in Strafford County
in an amount not to exceed $482,119, effective upon Governor and Executive Council through
June 30, 2017. 100% Federai Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

|

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 | Payments to Providers 45057500 $482,119
Totali: $482,119
EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one (1) of three (3) vendors,
statewide, that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use
treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in
the mother's care. The Department will request Governor and Executive Council approval of
the other two (2) agreements once they are received from the vendors.

The purpose for this request is to provide substance use disorder treatment services;
residential and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 2 of 3

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing the State. When the Hope on Haven Hill program opens its doors it will allow
mothers to remain with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorder.
The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children so they
can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the TANF
program is to promote the independence of needy families through work, and education. Hope
on Haven Hill will address those needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate
care for the children in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely
aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our
community. The vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and removing
barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger
community. The services will support families in ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants’
substance use disorders.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health ilinesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

e Communication classes

¢ Anger management classes

e Coping skills

e Childbirth education classes

e Nurturing parenting classes

e Lactation services

e Therapeutic play

e Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother’s care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood"
and the Honorable Executive Council
Page 3 of 3

pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five (5) and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
p— o
VoA D <

o E’Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by:
rey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject: OPEN DOORS Homelessness Prevention & Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use

Disorders (SS-2017-DFA-01-Opend-02)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Road
Rochester, NH 03867
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date
Number 05-95-45-450010-6146
(603) 834-0766 June 30, 2017

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin, Director 603-271-9558

1.11 Contractor Slgnature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
e M U eveditin o meJ Chaa rparscm _
7 bE Hope on Haverill' Bpaad'of Directors

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of Huw Heenes vy County of  _§qad@ ~d

Qg\\\"!"ﬁ’lﬂf 2, Tete before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
‘\M

R rson whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
A %12
Qﬁl ‘o 3.1M$1gn ENotary Public or Justice of the Peace

W,

WY
\\\““

l‘uﬁ{u
3
ET
ak

5. itle of Notary or Justice of the Peace
& me\ss\'\\\‘ LY SeoTT %
[”'" ““““\ Ké t G < 3 g .d

1.14 State Agency Slgnature 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

74N2 ’7( Date:.—)/g‘g/'(ﬂ \< ak \& s Ft)( \D\'/LC HK’

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personn&l (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General

5V oy /]

1.18 Approval by the GoVernor and Executive Council (if applicable)

, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

7] ) >

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“*State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. Inthe event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of -
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor, .
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or

___her successor, shall be the State’s representative. . In the event

of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the

Services; the Contractor shall-detiver to-the Contracting -

Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire.

Contractor Init1311
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of

insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”). :

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials /\/H
S$S-2017-DFA-02-Opend-02
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Scope of Services

Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual family
uniess the parent is employed in which case services can be extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement, including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health insurance
such as dental services, auto registration, personal care, and books and
tuition subject to department approval.

The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment, residential
and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant
and/or parenting women who:;

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or increase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

The Contractor shall work, in partnership with DHHS to review/assist the
development of program processes, service provision, and overall program

- outcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DHHS to ensure desired

program benchmarks are achieved timely.

The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject’'s research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department’'s approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall comply with the Department’s Sentinel Event Reporting.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or a comparable
system to record all encounter notes, including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall:

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening
1.10.1.2. Feed determination
1.10.1.3. Admission
1.10.1.4. Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenrollment
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client’s progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services.

2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment. ”

2.1.5. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate childcare.
2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women’s

N’ L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women’s
substance use disorders.

The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).
2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.
2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of;

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.
2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.54. Ethnic community based organizations.

The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. [Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-

2.5.3. Case assessments.

The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facility licensed, or in the process of being licensed
within the first 6 months of the contract effective date, as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing on or off site
with the ability to provide onsite substance use disorder treatment services.
Supportive housing, may include, but is not limited to, apartments within an
apartment complex, group housing, or shared housing.

2.6.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving scheduled onsite SUD
treatment services.

Hope on Haven Hill, inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initia;7 l LC‘
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS —~ Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
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2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Housing.

2.7.2. Food.
2.7.3. Clothing.
2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children, who are under the age of
5 or not yet eligible for public school enroliment, into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care. The Contractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.full.pdf .

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare shall be available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services or provide referrals to services, when
no appropriate services are immediately available while managing a waiting list. The
Contractor shall:

2.9.1. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services may include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.1.3. Individual andfor group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the
fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises, to assess and
respond.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS ~ Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
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2.10.

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C, (HepC), and
Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:
2.9.2.1. Therisks of needle sharing.
2.9.2.2. Therisks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.23. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC, and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.2.4. Referral to HIV, HepC, or TB treatment services, if necessary.
2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.
2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that includes, but is not limited to:
2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier.
2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.
2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services.
2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.
2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Assess clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department’s Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use is not used as the sole reason for discharging clients
from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but are not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.
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Exhibit A

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enroliment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this Contract, which shall include, but is not limited to, behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice, in accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facility
Rules, Part He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation. These
should include, but are not limited to:

2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC).

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

_Exhibit A

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs and/or LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One (1) full-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.6. One (1) director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health
Epidemiologist in order to collect data, complete surveillance, and complete
evaluation of social determinants of health and other public health and community
health indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department;
and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.
2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17.2. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.2.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.2.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.2.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.2.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.2.5. Emergency closings.
2.17.3. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.4. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited to:

2.17.4.1. Adult and infant Cardiopuimonary Resuscitation (CPR)
2.17.4.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.4.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.4.4. Universal precautions (for what?)

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initi;j L
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Exhibit A

2.18. The Contractor shall ensure services in this agreement continue beyond the contract
end date. The Contractor shali:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termination of the contract period.

2.19. The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompliance
from the Department, if the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract.

2.20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective action
plan described in Section 2.14, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting
3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:
3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing services in
the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no later
than 6 months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall attempt to contact 95% of the individuals on the waiting list
described in Section 2.4.3. at least one time per month.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of 8 families in the New
Hampshire region.

5.2. The Contractor shall begin outreach activities to publicize contract services no later
than 90 days from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to the
Department for approval no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices identified in Section 2.3.2 to the
Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.4.3 to
the Department every 60 days.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section 2.10.3 to
the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor |nitiam _\jtk
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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L .. Exhibit A

5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in trainings

described in Section 2.10.5 to the Department no later than 60 days after the
contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.13 to the
Department no later than December 30, 20186.

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor lnit—iQ/\/\/ /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Low Income Pregnant and Prenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, in
accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C

o e e e - SPECIAL PROVISIONS - o o e e

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include ali
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract ar sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or {except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials \
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and ail invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical recards on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, ali payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor initials )/\ /\./(Z '
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- “Notwithstanding-anything to the contrary contained hereinthe covenants-and-conditionscontained in-———

the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price fimitation
hereunder, the Contract and al! the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resuiting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall inciude the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
- purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOQOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees waorking on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibitities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’'s performance on an ongoing basis
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- 194 —Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand—
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL.: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract. '

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Gontract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature .of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
madifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or madification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Govemor and Executive Council.

-
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~—CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS .

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 1l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year cavered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

Publishing a statement notifying employees that the uniawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s

workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such

prohibition;

Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant

officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

PPN Wored@a Nanme| € hotcr pereon
Date _I\I:Iietage: g COA 0( O’WL D\ (&WS
Hope o Hoowre Hal
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e e o CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING - T T e e

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title iV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
maodification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

f\l?‘}l\&o Mimicv\m@wgm

Date Name: Eoc,v\gk oF Dwec

Title: HL'P'Q—O\/\ ' H'(“
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foliowing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

" oK » ur

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in ali solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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“—information of a participant is ot Tequiredto exceed that which s normatty possessed by a prudent—

person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1.

1.2

11.3.

11.4.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federa! or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1.

13.2.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it wil!
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all iower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

|99 h\o Weoveditin Hovmed Cha (perSON

Date
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1875 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the -
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the iaws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the

agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
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~—Intheeventa Federalor State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes afindingof —
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
. to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

q):??‘\b \Lwc\ﬁrv\ e Clhoinperson
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e HLQL o o \\

Exhibit G ; f
Contractor Initials

Certification of Compliance with requirements pertaining to Federal Nondiscrimination, Equal Treatment of Faith-Based Organizations

and Whistleblower protections
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Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

122/ Meereditin /—‘ﬁcm/d@mwm
D Tae: oA of Dicecters,
Hipe on Howen il

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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Exhibit |

T T T HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT o ' T

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations. :

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Qperations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials |
Health Insurance Portability Act

Business Associate Agreement ] 2 V
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit 1

I.  “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. ‘Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the

HITECH
Act.
(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.
a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health

Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
fil. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

C. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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Exhibit |

(3)

3/2014

remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI !

Exhibit [ Contractor Initials
Heaith insurance Portability Act
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Exhibit |

3/2014

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shali make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business, j l !
Is /
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Exhibit |

(5)

(6)

3/2014

Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. l (
S
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

M Hpoe on Hawen sl

The State Name of the Contractor

Ve - A Yo

Signature of Authorized Representative

KXo S Fox Merediih Pavne \

Name of Adthorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Do o~ ChCigperson - Poand of Dicectars
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
x|k N 1221
Date ! Date
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Exhibit J

"CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2PN AN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

N2k Maoved P Haumel

e Neme: C juinpersom, Doanel ef
Title: b '-Vews , /HC/F,Q ar %R/Uéi\ hl((
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Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entity is: (D& (O( ELAOY

In your business or organizatidn’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

X No YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials g \ gSL K

Accountabitity And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance \
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #7 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as “Amendment #17) dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Families in Transition (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"),
a nonprofit company with a place of business at 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on September 21, 2016 (#11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based
upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of
certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30, 2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

1.11  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
funds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CA/DHHS/100213
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

MNancd 2017 * /\
Date ! Terry Smith
Director

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

February 22, 2017 ZZ I&g:gﬁ /1 {1 éﬁ&((%ﬁﬁ
Date Narhe: Maureen Beauregard

Title: President

Acknowledgement:

State of New Hampshire , County of Hillsborough on February 22, 2017
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public

Q A/;/ , My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

Name afid Title of Notdy or Jfistice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin Asst. / Notary Public

CA/DHHS/100213
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.
OFFICE ?F THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Al (/IM/\/]

Date } [Z W Name: MM ALiJ%
¢ {M

Title:

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

CA/DHHS/100213
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State of Nefn ?Hampzire
Lepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that FAMILIES IN TRANSITION is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed May 13, 1994. I further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 13" day of April A.D. 2016

g Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

l, Dick Anagnost , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Officer of Families in Transition

{Agency Name)
2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on February 22, 2017
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _ 22 day of _February , 2017
(Date Contract Signed)
4. _ Maureen Beauregard is the duly elected President
(Name of Contract Signatory) {Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency. \QI\/

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _Hillsborough

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 22 day of __February , 2 y,
Hy,
\\\\\ um‘.',ﬂ"t’
SR %
By __ Dick Anagnost e S . 5 % X
{Name of Elected Officer of the Agency) ( __ s 3 %&W 'im 2
E := OCTOBER5. H E3
/{\ MANS — Z ‘k\“\’ §
(Notary Public/Justice of the P@;@é}: “”m\“% \\\\\
P
NOTARY SEAL; ””Hmum\\\\“
Commission Expires:
July 1, 2005

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



A FAMIINT-01 SLAMERE
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oATe tawoar

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: [f the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONIACT Stephanie Lamere, CIC
?f%"iifb "I)'?tvgg::liorrill & Everett, Inc. NG, Ext): (603) 715-9740 ‘ (A%, No):(603) 225-7935
Concord, NH 03301 EML s, slamere@davistowle.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
iNsuReR A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED insurer B : Wesco Insurance Company
Families in Transition, Inc. INSURER C :
122 Market St INSURER D :
Manchester, NH 03101
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE o S, POLICY NUMBER Tl | (ADONS ) uMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENGE s 1,000,000
| cLams-maDE [X] OCCUR PHPK1591984 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 | BAVMACEIORENTED o | 100,000
L] MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
| PERSONAL 8 ADVINJURY | § 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
poLICY SEGr Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 3,000,000
OTHER: $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY LR NCE LT g 1,000,000
X | ANy AUTO PHPK1591987 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 | BoDILY INJURY (Per person) | $
[ | OWNED SCHEDULED
AUTOS ONLY AUTGS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
PROPERTY DAMAGE
— ?{JRI%:?S ONLY 281':‘6%%%%9 {Per accident) $
$
A | X|umerelaums | | occur EACH OGCURRENCE s 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUB567749 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 AGGREGATE s
peD | X | RETENTIONS 10,000 N 5,000,000
RKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
B :vr?o EnEﬂPLOYERSEUAABIL?TY YIN X | STATUTE t ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PAR TNER/EXECUTIVE WWC3243601 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 [ | L, .\ sccipent s 1,000,000
FFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A 1.000.000
andatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 1905
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § o5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Families in Transition, Inc.
and Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
of December 31, 2015 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2015, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.



Board of Directors
Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2014 consolidated financial statements and, in our
report dated March 30, 2015, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2014 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matter
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2015, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individual entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

W b,u/rwth MeNecl ¢ Petder, LLC

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 22, 2016



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

“ December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

ASSETS
201 014
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,027,626 $ 996,035
Funds held as fiscal agent 90,123 75,737
Accounts receivable 30,212 39,983
Grants receivable 317,288 282,810
Prepaid expenses 43,155 54,587
Reserve cash designated for properties 717,593 662,613
Due from related parties 8,809 8,210
Other current assets 41.302 43779
Total current assets 2,276,108 2,163,754
Replacement reserves 331,216 338,563
Investments 10,435 10,661
Investment in related entity 1,001 1,000
Property and equipment, net 25,441,709 26,111,906
Development in process 1,881,561 260,947
Other assets, net 129.844 145,356
Total assets $ 30,071 ,874 $ 29 032,187
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt $ 184,407 $ 182,916
Accounts payable 203,943 183,579
Accrued expenses 152,630 159,806
Funds held as fiscal agent 90,123 75,737
Due to related entity 869 2,371
Security deposits 44 665 76,365
Total current liabilities 676,637 680,774
Long-term debt, less current portion 10,594.485 9,943.359
Total liabilities 11,271,122 10,624 133
Net assets
Unrestricted - controlling interest 12,946,230 12,197,286
Unrestricted - noncontrolling interest 5,248,340 5.691.054
Total unrestricted 18,194,570 17,888,340
Temporarily restricted . 606,182 519.714
Total net assets 18.800.752 18.408.054
Total liabilities and net assets $__30.071.874 $__20.032.187

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

“Year Ended December 31, 2015 e
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014)

Program Activities

Management 2015 2014
Housing Thrift Store  Fundraising and General Total Total
Salaries and benefits
Salaries and wages $ 1,508,151 $ 337347 $ 185321 $ 166811 $ 2,197,630 $ 2,147,196
Temporary labor - - - - - 7,202
Employee benefits 174,240 47,386 17,485 15,738 254,849 287,891
Payroll taxes 112,965 25,301 14,259 12,835 165,360 171,078
Total salaries and
benefits 1,795,356 410,034 217,065 195,384 2,617,839 2,613,367
Other expenses

Advertising 9,670 30,221 946 852 41,689 29,640
Amortization 15,513 - - - 15,513 13,268
Application and permit fees 3,240 - - - 3,240 2,400
Bad debts 19,238 - - - 19,238 15,341
Bank charges - - - 15,307 15,307 14,617
Consultants 2,319 1,440 - 4 557 8,316 32,583
Depreciation 872,430 3,286 18,730 16,860 911,306 885,810
Events - 3,118 37,569 - 40,687 46,919
General insurance 99,957 3,486 495 20,682 124,620 133,332
Interest expense 202,948 110 - - 203,058 179,152
Management fees 6,886 - - - 6,886 9,676
Meals and entertainment 3,351 37 569 512 4,469 3,990
Membership dues 4,985 316 846 762 6,909 6,787
Office supplies 81,584 12,107 13,017 11,717 118,425 129,469
Participant expenses 59,067 10 - 2,454 61,531 43,958
Postage 4,581 506 778 700 6,565 8,001
Printing 21,164 1,848 3,592 3,233 29,837 17,013
Professional fees - - - 112,934 112,934 123,691
Rental subsidies 137,927 - - - 137,927 251,347
Repairs and maintenance 352,634 40,601 8,430 7,588 409,253 404,387
Staff development 6,454 - 1,096 986 8,536 11,881
Taxes 263,754 2,625 - - 266,379 263,719
Technology support 44 843 828 7,290 6,562 59,523 59,482
Telephone 51,412 6,087 6,711 6,041 70,251 66,059
Travel 33,384 6,299 5,665 5,099 50,447 56,775
Utilities 379,830 30,041 - - 409,871 411,676
VISTA program 306,283 - - - 306,283 264,623
Workers' compensation 60,383 11,568 6574 5918 84,444 71938
Total expenses $_4839.193 $__ 564569 $_ 329373 $__ 418148 $_6.151,283 $_6.170,901

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2014)

2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 392,698 $ 906,268
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 926,819 899,078
Contribution for long-term purposes (50,000) (687,760)
Forgiveness of debt (131,267) (131,267)
Unrealized losses (gains) on investments 227 (1,084)
Loss on asset disposal 11,150 3,653

Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable 9,771 3,918
Grants receivable (34,478) (53,293)
Prepaid expenses 11,432 10,853
Due from related parties (599) 1,625
Other current assets 2,477 (3,721)

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 20,364 46,883
Accrued expenses (7,176) 57,287
Due to related party (1,502) 2,371
Other current fiabilities (31.700) 29,402
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,118,216 1,084,133

Cash flows from investing activities
Net (deposits to) withdrawals from reserve accounts (47,633) 14,242
Purchases of investments - (1,060)
Investment in development in process (862,528) (550,717)
Acquisition of property and equipment {179,852) (113.629)
Net cash used by investing activities (1.050.013) (651.164)

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants received for long-term purposes 50,000 -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 156,083 -
Payments on long-term debt (202.695) (169.144)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 3,388 (169,144)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 31,591 263,825
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 996,035 732,210
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $_1.027626 $___996.035

Supplemental disclosure

Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings $ 72410 % 430,000
Acquisition of development in process through long-term borrowings $ 158.086 $ 63.283
Property and equipment transferred from development in process $ = 3 1,483,454

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

' ‘December 31,2015 e
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT or the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit, incorporated on
May 13, 1994, to provide housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who
are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in certain areas of southern New Hampshire, including
Manchester, Concord and Dover.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing facilities are
owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization is the sole general
partner. These limited partnerships include Millyard Families I Limited Partnership (Millyard 1), located
on Market Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; Bicentennial Families Concord Limited Partnership
(Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

In 2008, the Organization created a Community Development Housing Organization, Housing Benefits,
Inc. (Housing Benefits). Housing Benefits identifies and develops new housing units and refurbishes
existing units to meet the persistent need of combating homelessness. Completed housing units are
located on School & Third Streets, Lowell Street, Belmont Street, Market Street (Millyard Families 1)
and Hayward Street, in Manchester, New Hampshire as well as an additional housing unit located on
Central Avenue in Dover, New Hampshire (Dover).

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family OutFITters, LLC (OutFITters), a limited liability
corporation. OutFlTters operates independent thrift stores in Concord and Manchester, New
Hampshire with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization.

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Brick Mill House Families II,
inc. (Brick Mill), Bicentennial Families Concord, Inc. (Bicentennial Families), Second Street Family Mill,
Inc. (Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General
Partners), all of which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent
the .01% sole general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Brick Mill is general partner of
Millyard 1I, Bicentennial Families is general partner of Bicentennial, Family Mill is general partner of
Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is general partner of Family Willows.

fn 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End
Homelessness, a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for homelessness through
research, education and advocacy". The activity of this entity is not deemed material and has not been
included in the consolidated financial statements.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control in the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation,
each of the Limited Partnerships' financial statements is required to be consolidated with the
Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners’ ownership interest is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, the General Partners, Housing Benefits, MEH and OutFITters. All significant inter-
entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classification. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2014 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits
could differ from those estimates.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31,2015
{(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on the
existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions.

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may
or will be met by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that they
be maintained permanently by the Organization. The donors of these assets permit the
Organization to use all or part of the income earned on related contributions for general or
specific purposes. The Organization had no permanently restricted net assets as of December
31, 2015 and 2014.

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that
increases those net asset classes. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as unrestricted support in the year of the gift.

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as unrestricted support,
unless a donor places explicit restriction on their use. Contributions of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily restricted support and
reclassified to unrestricted net assets when the assets are acquired and placed in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential
risk at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Restricted deposits are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for
operating costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for
rental properties as well as certain other social services and programs.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 5 to 30 years. Assets not in service are
not depreciated.

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 is
approximately $870,000 and $810,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the impact thereof. As of
December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not
meet the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. The
Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return is generally subject to
examination by the federal government for up to three years.

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as a partnership, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

-10-



2.

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

I - “ 0 - December 31, 2015

{(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2015 2014
Land $ 3,112,699 $ 3,112,699
Land improvements 595,300 595,300
Buildings and improvements 27,901,568 27,743,643
Furniture and fixtures 501,900 496,456
Equipment 324,134 336,464
Vehicles 290,475 214,065

32,726,076 32,498,627

Less: accumulated depreciation 7,284,367 6.386.721

Property and equipment, net $__ 25441709 $_ 26,111,906

In June 2014, land located at Spruce Street and Massabesic Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire was donated to FIT by the City of Manchester. This land will be developed into the
Hollow's Community Garden and Learning Center. The project is intended to improve the quality of
life of at-risk children and families by providing immediate hunger relief, expanding food access
and delivering hands-on educational experiences.

In September 2014, a three-family building and land located on Spruce Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire was donated to FIT by the City of Manchester. The property was transferred from FIT
to Housing Benefits. Housing Benefits intends to rehabilitate the project into rental housing for low-
income households. All construction will incorporate energy efficiencies to reduce operating costs
and help ensure long-term affordability.

Development in Process

In 2014, the Organization began the pre-construction phase on its Family Place Resource Center
and Shelter through funding received from New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA),
Community Development Finance Authority funds and donations. The facility will house a new and
expanded family shelter as well as a comprehensive resource center designed to meet the needs
of homeless families and children. The shelter will consist of 11 emergency housing units for
families in immediate need of shelter. The services include, but are not limited to, centralized
assessment and referral, hot meals, access to an onsite food pantry, onsite medical care and
therapeutic preschool programming for children. The project was completed in December 2015
and began providing services in January 2016. At December 31, 2015, the Organization had
invested approximately $1.7 million in the facility which is included in development in process in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

-11 -



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $100,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4%. There was no outstanding balance or activity as of and for the years ended

December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 64,186 $ 67,613

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 163,283 157,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $990, including interest at 4.55%. The loan is collateralized
by real estate on Spruce Street, Manchester, New Hampshire
and is due and payable in full in February 2019. 127,772 132,207

A vehicle loan on an activity bus payable to New Hampshire Health
and Education Facilities Authority in monthly payments of $525
at 1% annual interest rate. The loan is due and payable in
February 2017. 7,310 13,492

A mortgage loan payable to TD Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,359, including interest at 7.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payable in full in November 2023. 90,702 100,050

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024, 243,224 250,676
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Dectember 31,2015
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

A mortgage note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA, collateralized
by real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final installment due and
payable on May 1, 2034. 159,494

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 28, 2033. This is nonrecourse. 85,018

A no-interest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is nonrecourse
and is subordinate to the $85,018 note payable. ' 337,720

A noninterest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to Merrimack
County, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. The note is due and payable in full in May 2033. 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Millyard Il to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the property or in
May 2031. This loan is nonrecourse. 461,696

A mortgage note payable by Millyard Il to NHHFA, collateralized by
real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of $1,729
include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The final
installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 257,265

A note payable by Millyard Il to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. A payment of interest shall be made annually no
later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of the net cash
flow. In any year where the Debt Coverage Ratio exceeds 1.15
‘to 1, principal payments shall be made no later than August 1
in an amount that will result in a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio.
All unpaid amounts are due and payable in full on August 1,
2031. This note is nonrecourse. 226,725

164,904

102,647

337,720

260,000

461,696

268,758

226,725
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

A noninterest bearing note payable by Millyard I to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by real estate. Payment of principal is due and payable on
December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000

A mortgage note payable by Millyard Families 1 to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate. The note is noninterest bearing and is due and
payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Millyard Families | to NHCLF,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,121
include principal and interest at 2% per annum. The final
installment is due and payable on June 15, 2022. 81,919 93,604

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30, 2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TD Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,953
include principal and interest at 7.71%. The note is payable in
full in October 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT and Family
Mitl. 473,244 483,093

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annuaily with ali remaining principal due on July 9,
2037. 568,617 598,957

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse. 118,181 127,272

-14 -



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

‘December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,882
include principal and interest at 3.5%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
is guaranteed by FIT and Big Shady Tree. 300,086

A mortgage note payable by School & Third Street to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. Monthly
payments of $2,774 include principal and interest at 8% per
annum. The note is due in February 2021. ' 142,347

A second mortgage note payable by School & Third Street to
NHCLF, collateralized by real estate and personal property.
The note bears no interest and monthly payments of $2,774 will
commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until maturity in
October 2039. 617,613

A mortgage note payable by Belmont Street to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
December 2040. 419,370

A privately-financed mortgage note collateralized by property
located at South Main Street in Concord, New Hampshire.
Monthly payments of $3,158 include principal and interest at
6.25% per annum. The note will be paid in full in September
2031. 379,138

A mortgage note payable from Lowell Street to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full in
August 2040. . 34,628

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from Lowell
Street to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire, collateralized
by real estate. Annual payments equal to the greater of 25% of
new cash flow or $4,000 commenced in October 2012 and will
continue until the maturity date in June 2041. 176,022

312,442

163,281

617,613

419,370

392,864

44 312

180,864
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2015

{(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

A noninterest promissory note payable from Lowell Street to
NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security agreement
on real estate. The note will be forgiven 1/15th annually over
the low-income housing tax credit compliance period. During
2015 and 2014, $131,267 was recognized as other income in
the consolidated statement of activities.

A mortgage note payable from Dover to NHHFA, collateralized by
the real estate and personal property. The noninterest bearing
note requires annual payments in amounts equal to 50% of
surplus cash. The note is payable in full by June 2028.

A noninterest mortgage note payable to the City of Manchester
Community Improvement Program, collateralized by real estate
located at 393-395 Spruce Street The note has a borrowing
limit of $500,000. As costs are incurred Housing Benefits will
be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual payments of
the greater of 25% of net cash flow or $5,000 are due by
October 1 commencing October 1, 2015. The note is due in full
by October 1, 2045.

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $1,921 include principal and interest at 3.41%. The note is
due in full by April 2019.

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $488, including
interest at 4.06%. The loan is due in September 2020 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle.

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $760, including
interest at 5.374%. The loan is due in November 2020 and is
collateralized by the related vehicle.

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full by
June 2044.

1,378,298

221,428

129,708

416,086

25,286

38,695

646,564

1,509,565

221,428

63,283

424,556
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

6.

December 31,2015 '
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street, Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $1,091 include principal and

interest at 4.25%. The note is due in full by January 2040.

Less current portion

197,367

10,778,892 10,

184,407

126,275

182.916

$10.594.485 $_9,943.359

Principal maturities of the above notes over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

Cash paid for interest approximates interest expense.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted for the following purposes:

The Family Place - services

The Family Place - development
Research and training
Scholarships and tutoring

VISTA program

Housing programs

Direct care for clients
Community Gardens

Grant receivable - time restricted

$

184,407
166,391
173,305
671,456
173,981

9,409,352

$

$10,778,892

2015 2014
52,000 53,672
140,115 241,000
- 26,333
13,348 4,375
50,623 38,511
8,432 4,750
198,460 79,851
46,204 71,222
97.000 -
606,182 519,714
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10.

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2015
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)
Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $32,880 and $31,138 during the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

Housing Action New Hampshire

In 2011, the Organization entered into a Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement with Housing Action New
Hampshire (HANH), an unincorporated association. Authority to manage the programmatic
activities of HANH is vested solely in HANH. The Organization maintains the books and financial
records for HANH in accordance with U.S. GAAP. HANH funds are presented in the Organization's
consolidated statement of financial position as funds held as fiscal agent.

Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows as of December 31:

Limited Partner Property 2015 2014
Community Capital 2000 Millyard 1l $ 932,812 $ 1,000,929
New Hampshire Housing

Equity Fund, inc. Bicentennial 302,918 352,882
JP Morgan Chase Bicentennial 303,031 352,985
BCCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 10
Boston Capital Corporate Family Bridge 1,486,889 1,660,467
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Capital Midway Family Willows 2,222.670 2323771

$__5.248.340 $__5.691.054
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

“December 31,2015 G e

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2014)

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 22, 2016,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION
Board of Directors

Dick Anagnost, Chairperson
President, Anagnost Companies
Board member since 2007

Charla Bizios Stevens, Vice Chairperson
Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group
Mclane, Graf, Raulerson & Middleton, P.A.
Board member since 2013

Robert Bartley, Treasurer
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Board member since 2007
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Angela M. Whitcher
Assistant Vice President, Relationship Management, Lincoln Financial Group
Board member since 2014

Kitten Stearns
Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage
Board member since 2014

Sedra Michaelson
Strategic Account Manager, CCH, a Wolters Kluwer Business
Board member since 2015

Peter Mennis
VP of the NH Commercial Banking Division, NBT Bank
Board member since 2015

Mary Ann Aldrich
Clinical Director of Community Health, Dartmouth-Hitchcock Manchester
Board member since 2015

Alex Anagnost
Director of Philanthropy/Project Manager, Anagnost Companies
Board member since 2015

Kelly Mulholland
SVP, Business Banking Regional Director, New England, Santander Bank, N.A.
Board member since 2016

Heather Whitfield
Peoples United Bank,
Board member since 2016

Wayne McCormick

First VP-Investments, McCormick-Spain Wealth Mgt. Group of Wells Fargo Advisors
Board member since 2016
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Stephanie Allain Savard, LICSW

Licensure and Education:

New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, #941, April,
2000.

Masters in Social Work, Boston University, 1996.

Bachelor of Arts — Honors in Psychology, Keene State College, 1992.
Associate of Science in Chemical Dependency, Keene State College, 1992.
Boston University Workshop-Based Trauma Certificate, 2006.

Low Income Housing Tax Credit Certified Credit Compliance Professional
(C3P), 2000.

Professional Experience: .
Vice-President, Families in Transition, Manchester, NH, 1/97 — Present.

Oversight of clinical department and all supportive services programming
within agency, including case management, therapeutic services,
employment & training services, youth programming and specialized
programming. Oversee and manage treatment and supportive services for a
program capacity of 150+ homeless families and individuals to ensure that
consistent and quality clinical services are provided. Oversight of 135+ units
of affordable housing to ensure quality and safe housing for all tenants.
Provide administrative and clinical supervision to all licensed clinicians,
masters and bachelor level clinician & case managers. Provide oversight to
the Property Administration Department, including management of all
funding requirements for each property, including Low Income Housing Tax
Credits, HOME, Housing and Urban Development, CDBG, etc.

Assumes responsibilities and decision-making for agency in the absence of
the President. Assist President on personnel issues and in oversight of
agency and strategic planning.

Provide therapeutic services to participants of program, including
participation in participant team meetings. Co-facilitate support groups on
various issues, including self-esteem, co-dependency, Relational/Cultural
Theory, trauma and relationships.

Families in Transition Board of Directors Programs and Supportive Services
Committee Member and assist in Board of Director meetings.

Member of the Manchester Continuum of Care, 10/00 — Present; Community
Awareness Committee Chair 2003/2004; 2006 — Present.

Counselor/Family Service Worker, NFI Midway Residential Shelter, Manchester,
NH, 1993 — 1996.

Supervised 15 adolescent males utilizing behavior management and normative
culture techniques.



e Supervised all shifts and summer activity program; Conducted family
assessments and counseling.

MSW Clinical Intern, CASPAR Emergency Service Center, Cambridge, MA,

1995-1996.

e Provided assessments, individual and group therapy to homeless substance
abusers in early recovery.

* Developed a resource manual of services for client referral and assisted in
creating a program brochure.

MSW Clinical Caseworker Intern, WorkSource of Work, Inc., Quincy, MA, 1994-
1995.

e Provided case management, counseling, and crisis intervention to consumers
with psychiatric disabilities in a vocational rehabilitation workshop.
Developed and co-facilitated support groups.

¢ Developed and facilitated a pre-employment program for consumers
transitioning into community work.

VISTA Volunteer, Center for Human Services, Seattle, WA, 1992-1993,

e Developed, recruited, and supervised a volunteer program for multiple
programs and departments.

e Diversity Committee Member; Assisted in agency fundraising and grant
writing; designed and marketed public relation materials; assisted in
coordinating Board of Directors and chairing Board committees.

Professional Affiliations and Volunteer Experience:
e Lazarus House Transitional Housing Advisory Council, Lawrence, MA, 2004
- Present.
e Board of Directors of the NH Coalition to End Homelessness, 12/00 - 2002.

Awards & Professional Memberships:
e National Association of Social Workers, Member 1996-Present; NH Chapter
Board of Directors, Vice-President 2006 — Present.
e Union Leader and Business Industry Association “40 Under 40” Leaders of
New Hampshire, 2004
e NH Homeless Service Providers Award, Office of Homeless and Housing
Services, 2003.



9/6'vT %00T 9/6'VT (IM/SIY 1Z) 1d - 4€31S IYSIUIBAQ demy agl
9/6'vT %00T 9/6'VT (IM/SIY 1Z) 1d - $4€1S IYSIUIBAQ emy agl
096'1¢ %00T 096'vT 14 - }481S 1YStuIanp axemy agl
096V %00T 096'vC 14 - 148315 1ySIuIanp axemy agl
0961 %00T 096'vC 14 - 1481S 1YSiuIanp emy agal
082'6S %00T 087'6S 1sidesay) Ajjwed 3 ppyd agl
0002y %00T ‘ 000'Cy T JayJop Hoddns Asanoday paiiie) agl
08265 %001 08765 isidesayl agl
08765 %00T 087'6S 1sidesayl agl
ove'ee %0S 08v'v9 138euey wesdold agl
0ze’s %01 G69'G8 00D pienes aiueydals
JPesluod siyl }Pesjuod
pd ywy wouJj pled % Aejes 3L aweN

jauuosiad Aoy
$J9pJOSIg 35N IIUBISANS YHM USWOAA Suljudied pue Jueusdald SWodu| Mo
104 soddng pue uopuUaNaId SSIUSSI|PWOH/SHOOA NIdO



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

Jeffrey A. Meyers

Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474
Terry R. Smith FAX: 603-271-4637 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

Director

August 24, 2 16

0 Aonroved
Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan Q )2] //O
and the Honorable Executive Council Jate 1
State House s {

Concord, NH 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Families in Transition, (Vendor # 157730-B001), 122 Market Street,
Manchester, NH 03101 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services. These
services include: residential and/or supportive housing, wraparound services to pregnant
and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have income at or
below the 185% Federal Poverty Level and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in
Strafford County in an amount not to exceed $499,207. This agreement will be effective upon
Governor and Executive Council through June 30, 2017. 100% Federai Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount
2017 502-500891 | Payments to Providers 45057500 $499,207
Total: $499,207
EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one of three vendors statewide
that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment
services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in the
mother's care. This is the third of three sole source contracts for these services. The
Governor and Executive Council approved one of the contracts on August 3, 2016 (Late ltem
A). It is anticipated that the second contract will appear on the September 7, 2016 Governor
and Executive Council meeting agenda.

The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential




Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council
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~treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to-their-fear-of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funds were transferred in the 2017
budget to address the addiction crisis currently facing the State. Substance abuse is often a
root cause of homelessness. Families in Transition (FIT) is currently working on expanding
their services to better assist the growing need of families facing substance abuse and/or
housing matters. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for
children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory
purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through work,
and education. The vendor will provide services that assist families with reducing and
removing barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the
larger community. The services will support families in ending their dependence on public
assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while addressing participants’
substance use disorders.

This agreement includes language that allows the Department to renew services for up
to two (2) years upon satisfactory provision of services, continued funding and Governor and
Executive Council approval.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health ilinesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

¢ Communication classes

¢ Anger management classes

¢ Coping skills

e Childbirth education classes

¢ Nurturing parenting classes

o Lactation services

e Therapeutic play

e Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

Ali services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother’s care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for
pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five and their
newborns for up to one year postpartum.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children may not receive the substance use disorder
treatment services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

W

Terry R. Smith
Director

Approved by: e
Jeffrey A. Meye
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission 1s to join communities and families
In providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Subject: OPEN DOORS Homelessness Prevention & Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use

Disorders (§S-2017-DFA-01-Opend-03)

~Notice:This-agreement-and all of its-attachments shall become publicupon submission to Governorand |-
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
Families in Transition

1.4 Contractor Address
122 Market Street
Manchester, NH

1.6 Account Number
05-95-45-450010-6146

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number
(603) 641-9441 X251

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

June 30, 2017 $499,207

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Eric D. Borrin, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.11 Contractor Slgnature

Vssse Ricosedf

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of NH , County of

On 8-15-16

Hillsborough

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily

proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

ottty op b

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public

My Commission Expires October 16,2018

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Jffstice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin. Asst. Notary Public

1.14 State Agency Signature

A- Date: ‘?/L(//g

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
P19k J € wes, r}'uw@u{ ey Ty

1.16 Approval by the

By:

. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

\LV\ g A Yol Hbreey 0’/9//6/

1.18 Approval by the Governor an

By:

xecutive Cduncil (ifapplicable)

On:

Page 1 of 4




2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. Inthe event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.,

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services, The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.-H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials “ i 1&
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Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination,
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Page 3 of 4
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
{(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shalil not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Govemnor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Page 4 of 4

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19, CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials 4 \ E
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.
1.7.

1.8.

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
include:

1.2.1.  Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2.  Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual family
unless the parent is employed in which case services can be extended,;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement, including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health insurance.

The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment, residential
and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant
and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1.  Are experiencing substance use disorders;
1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and
1.3.3.  Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

The Contractor shall keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or increase
services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with DHHS, specifically DFA, to
review/assist with the development of program processes, service provision, and
overall program outcomes. Contractor shall work in collaboration with DFA to ensure
desired program benchmarks are achieved timely .

The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:
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Exhibit A

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall comply with the Department's Sentinel Event Reporting.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or a comparable
system to record all encounter notes, including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall:

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:
1.10.1.1. Screening
1.10.1.2. Feed determination
1.10.1.3. Admission
1.10.1.4. Billing
1.10.1.5. Disenroliment
1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client’s progress with specific treatment
goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services through
referrals to local support services.

2.1.2.  Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.
2.1.3. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

21.4. Access to onsite age developmentally appropriate childcare during treatment
and/or age developmentally appropriate childcare when needed.

2.1.5. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.
2.1.6. Wraparound services.
2.1.7. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women's
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Exhibit A

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women’s
substance use disorders.

The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).
2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.
2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.
2.45.2. Health care providers.

2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to monitor case
management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial evaluation
completed in accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-

The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Competencies/SMA15-4171. This may
include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services in a facility licensed, or in the process of being licensed
within the first 6 months of the contract effective date, as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing on or off site
with the ability to provide onsite substance use disorder treatment services.
Supportive housing, may include, but is not limited to, apartments within an
apartment complex, group housing, or shared housing. Funding for
Supportive Housing services shall be limited to four (4) months based of
TANF regulations around non assistance categories.
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2.6.3.

Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving scheduled onsite SUD
treatment services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.71.
2.7.2.
2.7.3.
2.74.
2.7.5.

Housing.
Food.

Clothing.
Diapers.

Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother’s care. The Contractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1.

2.8.2.

2.8.3.

Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/pediatrics/128/5/e1341.full. pdf

Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:

2.91.

Families in Transition

Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative provider.
These services may include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the
fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises, to assess and

respond. .
Exhibit A Contractor initials i@ﬁﬁ
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2.10.

2.11.

2.12.

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C (HepC), and
Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.2.1. The risks of needle sharing.
2.9.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC, and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.2.4. Referral to HIV, HepC, or TB treatment services, if necessary.
2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.
2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that includes, but is not limited to:
2.9.3.1. A unique patient identifier.
2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.
2.9.3.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services.
2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.
2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Asses clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use is not used as grounds for discharging clients from
services being provided under this contract.

The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely.

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:
2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area in which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.
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2.13.

2.14.

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.
2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which inciude, but are
not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.
2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.
2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this project, which shall include medical and behavioral health
services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of practice and
must be pursuant with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facility Rules,
Part He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation as well as with
ASAM guidelines around Intensive Outpatient Programs referenced in level 2.1
which can be accessed at http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria.
These shall be applicable staffing for this contract that are referenced in this rule and
should include, but are not limited to:
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2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC) or Board
of Mental Health Licensed Clinician.

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs and/or LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One half time advance registered nurse on staff or by referral

2.14.6. One (1) fulltime individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) half time director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health
Epidemiologist with experience in data collection, surveillance, and evaluation of
social determinants of health and other public health and community health
indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training is available to staff; or
2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department; and
2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care
is maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17.2. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.2.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.2.2.Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.2.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.2.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.2.5. Emergency closings.
2.17.3. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.4. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited to:

Families in Transition Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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2.18.

2.19.

2.20.

2.17.4.1. Adult and infant CPR.

2.17.4.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.4.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.
2.17.4.4. Universal precautions

The Contractor shall ensure services in this agreement continue beyond the contract
end date. The Contractor shali:

2.18.1. Provide detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainably at the
termination of the contract period.

2.18.2. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for any
eligible services.

2.18.3. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from sources
including but not limited to

2.18.3.1. Grants from private trusts and foundations
2.18.3.2. Individual and corporate donations
2.18.3.3. Event fundraising

2.18.3.4. Private funding raised through the growth of FITs two social
entrepreneurial business ventures

The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompliance
from the Department, if the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract.

The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective action
plan described in Section 2.19, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1.

The Contractor shali provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:
3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing services in
the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

41.

4.2.

The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no later
than six (6) months after the contract effective date.

The Contractor attempt to contact a minimum of 95% of the individuals on the
waiting list described in Section 2.9.3 are at least one time per month.
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4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

The contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled in program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate level of care for their needs.

The contract shall ensure that 90% of clients are referred to onsite employment
programming to increase in financial stability and reduce dependence of public
assistance.

The contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three
receive initial assessments to inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

The Contractor shail provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of 50 families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire region.

The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities in
Section 2.4 to the Department for approval no later than 60 days from the contract
effective date.

The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from the
contract effective date.

The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Sections, 2.8, 2.17.2.4 and
2.17.4.3 to the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9 to the
Department once every two months.

The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section 2.17.2 to
the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in trainings
described in Section 2.17.4 to the Department no later than 60 days from the
contract effective date.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8, in
accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558, U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.2.The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-mail to:

Financial Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. Afinal payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any State or
Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price fimitation is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: if the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentatlon
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1.  Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
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. 7.3. _Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make

such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.

10.

Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor

covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. 1t is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attorney or guardian.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and ha? 50 or

§
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__more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEQP Certification Form to the

17.

18.

19.

OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEQP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEQOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert. pdf.

Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistieblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TO INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function
19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate
19.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4,

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the

following language;

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

CU/DHHS/110713
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-680, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’'s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s

workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such

prohibition;

Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under

subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant

officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and inciuding
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15,2016
Date

Maureen Beauregard
President
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XiX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016
Date Maureen Beauregar
Title: President
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S e CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

" "o

suspended,” “ineligible,

" u

LY

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred, lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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10.

information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

1.

12.

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13.

14.

Aug 15, 2016

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
~ voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without madification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Date

ame: Maureen Beauregar
Title:  President

Exhibit F ~ Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initial
And Other Responsibility Matters
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_ CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION, EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (28 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

-28 CF.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 CF.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Autharization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debarment.
Exhibit G i
Contractor Initials
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:  Families in Transition

g

Aug 15, 2016 M&MA—W
Date Name: Maureen Beauregard

Title:  president

Exhibit G
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NG ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmenta!l Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016
Date

Exhibit H — Certification Regarding Contractor Initialsv iﬂﬁ
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. ‘Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set’
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act’ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually ldentifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initials QMZ
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(2)

“Required bvr Law"wsiﬁéll haverﬁtrhér same meamngas thé féffﬁ"‘?equired by law” |n745 CFIé
Section 164.103.

. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or

his/her designee.

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
I. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PH! will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Assaciate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit | Contractor Initialsm
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(3)

3/2014

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity’s compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PS|

Exhibit | Contractor Initials
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. pursuant ta this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such

3/2014

business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
Exhibit { Contractor Initials M
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

Miscellaneous

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. i§ D
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

W,
YASY/)
" = 7),9%9_() Families in Transition
/ P

The State Name of the Contractor

il A Dagusey ot sl
Signature of Authodzed Representative Sidnature of Authorized Representative

AnIc. Tgmnsig ¢ Maureen Beauregard
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Bonage Cleoy WS President
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
E- 25~ L7 August 15, 2016
Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SN A WN=

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Families in Transition

Aug 15, 2016
Date

Name: Maureen Beauregdard
Title: President

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials |[ N ﬁ
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

CUDHHS/110713 Page 1 of 2 Date 8-15-16



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | cer’ufy that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1.

2.

The DUNS number for your entity is: __ 825360399

In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements”?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials ‘
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